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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT

ABOUT UiS — THE BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Intemnational Entertainment Holdings Limited {the "Group”) is an infernational holding group
majority owned by Providence Equity Partners. The principal activity of the Group is to hold
companies thal camry oyl complementary activities across the value chain of live entertainment
ond theatre-related aclivity, principally in the UK. USA, Conlinental Europe and Australia. The Group
considers thal these markets have significont potential for growth and forms the basis for the
Group's strategy of funher growth and expansion.

The Group is made up of several companies thal are run independently:

- The Ambassador Theatre Group Limifed [ATG) is o global leader in live enterlainment. ATG
cunenlly owns and operates 45 venues across the UK, USA and Germany, is an
internationally recognised award-winning producer and operates its own theatre licketing
business operafion. Of the 46 venues, 31 are localed in the UK, with coverage across
England and Scofland, with o further two venues at Stockion and Swansea to be fully
operational in the coming years. This will give ATG a presence in Wales and increase the
number of UK venues to 33. The remaining 15 venues are located in the USA and Germany
wilh ten and five venues respectively. The most notable international venue being the Lyric
on Broadway. This being the hame to the multi-Toni Award winning play, Harry Potter and
the Cursed Child. In the autlumn of 2019 the success at the Lyric is 10 be replicated at The
Curran in 5an Francisco when il will also cpen its doors to Hamry Potter and the Cursed Child.
Dwiing the year. the Smart Financial Center (SFC) -a state-of-the-an, indoor performance
venue was aocquired, bringing the number of U5 venues to 10. and in total globally to 49,
once Socklon and Swansea go live in the coming years,

- Mehtl-BR Entertainment GmbH and BB Group Gmbh, collectively refered fo as Mehr-8B, is
focused on Continental Europe operafions. Mehri-BB was formed by the merger of the
Mehrt Group {Mehrl) {facquired in May 2018) with the BB Enteriainmen! Group of companies
{ocquired in May 2015). The acquisition of Mehr! added five venues to the IEH Group,
covering key locations in Germany [Berlin, Dusseldorf, Cologne, Hamburg and Bachum).
Mehrt-BB's business model is directly aligned to the business of ATG, covering, venues,
ticketing, marketing and content preduction. In March 2020 the Hamburg theatre will also
become home to HWary Poller and the Cursed Child. Meh!-BB's in-house and co-
productions are shown on stoges in over 35 countries on six continents, with core markets
being Germany, Austric and Switzerand.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT

ABOUT US -~ THE BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (continued)

- Sonia Fiedman Productions Limited (5FP), is an independent subsidiary focused on the
development of theatrical productions on Broadway and in the West End. SFPis responsible
for some of the most successful productions. which in aggregate have won 55 Olivier
Awards, 24 Tony Awards and 2 BAFTAS.

- The AKA Group [AKA). is headquartered in London with offices in Australia and the USA,
AKA is a market leading inlemational communications network serving the entertainment,
cultural and film indusiries. The AKA Group provides integrated markefing, media, digital
and creative services to clients across theatre, museums, galleries. attractions. film studics

ond cultural institutions as well as servicing ATG ond their third-party customers.

The directors see the Group as strongly placed for fuiure success, with its complementary activities
and operations located in each of the key theatrical markets across the world.

REVIEW OF FY19

Highlights
ol FY19 | *Geographical « Expansion *Dividend of *Refinancing of
. expansion through the £10.9m paid out the business
. through the continued roll to shareholders making
- completed out of Harry additional funds
! acquisitions of Potter and the available for
. Mehrd, Cursed Chiid in _ acquisitions and
- Ambassadors San Fransisco investiments
and SFC, and Hamburg as
increasing the well as the world
no. of venues to premier of
46 Moulin Rouge at
the Boston
Cclonial

The period to 30 March 2019 has been a year of continued transformation and integration for the
Group, with a review of all areas of the business to ensure the foundations of the business are

sufficiently robust to support the growth aspirations of the direclors and shareholders,



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

REVIEW OF FY1? {continued}

This focus and leadership have transcended into the Group performing at improved levels of
profitability, with 2019 being noi only the best year as o combined group. but the best year for
some individual member companies of the Group. Furthermore, as highlighied by the KPI analysis
below, all areas of perlormance are indine with the directors’ expeciations, with the most

satisfactory performance being the growth in the non-financial indicators.

The loss after tax for the period of £31.5 million (2018: £25.1 million) is higher than last year driven by
the one-off losses on the unwind of the US financing structure that relaled to the Saenger Theatre
in New Oreans £17.2 million {2018: nil) and the £18.7 million loss {2018: nil) on the iair value of the
borrowings, folfowing the Group's refinancing in the period. With these jwo items added back, then
the Group would have recorded a profil in the year of £4.4 million {2018: Loss £25.1 million).

Capital structure and investment

The capital structure of the Group hos also been reviewed and {ollowing an amendment of the
external bank debt, the Group was further funded to support continued growth. At the period end,
the business has £75.0 million undrawn on ils facilities. During the financial period, the maturity dale
of these faciliies was extended to 2023

The business has continued its level ot investments, both in property, plant and equipment and in
investments in shows, with £23.4 million {2018: £43.9 milion) invested in properly, plont and
equipment {refer to note 13} and £0.3 million (2018: £2.7 million) invested in shows,

New venues

During the period, the Colonial in Boston opened its doors 1o the world premiere of Moulin rouge
with great success. ATG UK acquired the Ambassadors Thealre in London, the Mehr! Group in
Germany and the Smart Finoncial Center in Texas.

Advanced ticket soles

The business has seen another year of increased advanced tickel sales. 2019: £139.0 million {2018:
£128.2 million), which though shown as a current liability, is seen as a key indicator of the luture
success of the business, as it reaffirms that the directors believe in being able to provide appealing
shows in its venues.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The direciors consider the financial and operational performance ond position of the business using

a range of financial ond non-financiol metrics. in relation to the previous financial pericd these

have been updated to reflect management's view of fhe business.

Snifine i'_‘ Global Admissions Glokal Occupancy Number of tickets scld
‘Non-financial - 12,026,000 64.3% 7,545,000
{2018: 9,822,000} (2018: 61.0%]) {2018: 7.051,000)
Gross Morgin less pass-
FAnancigi Revenue through costs Operating profit
TS s £443.2m §3.3% £28.3m
; (2018: £367.5m) (2018: 64.3%) (2018: peofit £22 1m)

. i
Non-Financial KPis:

- Global admissions {number of people attending a performance that has matured within
the relevan! period) have grown by 22% year on year. Growth in odmissions are driven both
by the increase in cur global venue portiolio as well as the sirenglhening in quality of
content shown in our venues.

- Globat occupancy has increased by 3.3% year on year. indicaling the strengthening of the
quality of our content, Cur global occupancy of 64.3% indicotes the further headroom for
growth,

- Number of tickets sold {ticket sale transactions during the relevani period that may be for
performances that mature beyond the relevant period), has increased year on year by 7%.
driven by the growth in venues as well as the improvement of the content slate in the
upcoming perods.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Financial Kpls:

- Revenue has increased by £75.7 million from 2018, driven by the acquisition of Mehr and
the success of Hamy Potler and the Cursed Child in North America. Please refer to note 3 for
geographical analysis of revenue.

- Gross Morgin less poss-through costs hos remained relatively stoble obove 40%.
Management considers the 63.3% (2018 64.3%). a successful performance for the period on
the back of local and iniernational economic conditions. Pass-through costs comprise fees
paid to third-party suppliers when they are engaged to perform port or oll of a specific
project, which are in-turn passed-on direcily to clienis. These cosits predominantly include
media and marketing related activilies. Management therefore considers that gross-margin

less pass-through costs gives a fairer reflection of the underlying margin of the business.

- Operating profit has also performed at a level satistactory to the directors, with the business
increasing operaling profit for a second consecutive year, with an additional £6.2 million
added year on yeor (201 8: £28.5 milion). This improvement has been driven in part by the
successiul completion of acquisitions in the period and the conlinued focus on managing

the cost base of the group, which also growing the underlying revenue base,
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Following a successful pericd for the Group, the directors continue to be oplimistic on the
continued growth of the business in fulure years. Whilst the focus continues to be maintaining ils
place as the global leader in live enteriainment, adding new businesses where beneficial and
complementary {o the other members of the Group is also a key consideration in growing the
business.

OVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The combined Group is focused on providing a high level of service to two groups of customaers,
comprised of producers gs well as audience meambers. By ensuring that the end-to-end “customer
journey" of our audience is a top pricrity, we will ensure that our venues are the best stages for

the best content developed by boith our own in-house as well as 3« parly producers.

Content Production

A key strategy of the Group’s Content Production division is to find, secure, ond produce high-
quality shaws for both ATG and third-party venues.

g



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group develops and produces new conient in addition to co-producing and investing in ang
presenting content from independent producers. The Group, through its subsidiaries, presenis an
average of 40 productions a year.

SFP enjoyed cnother year of creative success, with Hamy Potter and the Cursed Child wining 9
COlivier awards, the most awards ever received by asingle production in Cliviers' history and 6 Tony
awards. SFP opened Homy Polter and the Cursed Child in Melbourne and announced that the
production wilt be opening in Homburg and San Francisco. Other productions that opened during
the year on Broadway include The Ferryman and Ink. Productions in the West End include Fiddier
on the Roof and All About Eve.

ATG Productions had a strong yeor with Pinter at the Pinter. a season of Harold Pinter’s one act
plays, which was concluded by the production Betrayal. Other productions during the year were
2 10 5, Carcline or Change, and lan at 80. The run of 9 10 § in the West End has been extended
due fo the box office success so far and a regional tour has also been announced. lan ai 805
production staring Sir lan Mckellen, which will tour 80 theatres in the UK.

The combination of Mehr! Entertainment and the BB Group {Mehrl-B8) had a good year with
touring shows Including Blue Man Group, Dirty Dancing. Disney's Beouty and the Beast, Mamma
Mia and the Rocky Homor Show. Mehrl-BB's long running sit-down show Starlight Express was
refreshed and relounched this year and has now been running for over 30 years. The new
production of Starlight Express won PRG's Live Entertainment Award tor Show of the Year. Mehr-

BB's production Carmen La Cubana was also nominated for the Show of the Year award.
Tickeling

The Group operates ihe forgest theotre ticketing business in the UK and selis the majority of fickets
to ifs shows through its own ticketing businesses. ATG Tickels, the Group's in-house ticketing
business continues to grow across the Regional and London venues, while the tickeling agency
business of the Group, LOVEiheatre.com conlinued to perform steadily in o competitive London
marketplace. ATG Tickets has launched in the USA with tickets sold for the Colonial, Hudson ond
the Curman. We have invested significantly this year in improving our website to increase sales
conversion and have also invested improving our customer relationship management

capabilities, both of these investmenis will help 1o improve marketing investrment efficacy.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Marketing

The Group through its subsidiary companies of AKA Group, headguartered in London and BB
Group, head-quartered in Mannheim, Germany, is able to offer a wide range of marketing
services, which are in-line and complimentary 1o the Group's overall stralegy. AKA, a global
enfertainment marketing and media adverlising agency tor the live entertainment, arts and
cultural industries has offices in London, Manchester, New York and Australia. AKA has continued
to support the Group’s strotegy of developing independent yet complementary business lines to
provide a full-service experience to clients within the theatre and live eniertainment industry.
Furthermore, AKA has seen its business offering extend io further afield with clienis not directly

kinked 10 the live entertainment industry, such as museurns and zoological centres,

While alongside its production services, BB Group, via its subsidiary ESMS, provides maorketing
services for live entertainment in German-speaking Europe.

Venve Operations

The aim of our venue operaiions division is o provide o greot service fo both our producers and
our audience members, We generate revenues from renling our venues to productions as well as
selling 1ood and beverages o our audience members,

In order to enhance our cusiomers' thealre-going experience, we have confinued 1o invest in
improving the quality of our venues. Many of the Group's venues are historic buildings which have
on important significance in iheir local areas. Invesiment in the mainienance of these buildings is
central fo the Group's custodionship of them for the benefits of future generations of gudiences.
The development and improvement of these venues to meet the needs and expeciations of

today’s audiences and producers are equally important.

In the UK, the Group owns and operates some of the most iconic venues in the UK with 11 in
tondon and 21 more across the regions. The Group operaies ten theatres in the USA, including
two Broadway venues {the Lyric and the Hudson). and 8 theatres in other US cities, including the
Cumran (San Francisco), which is due to open later in 2019 and the SFC was acquired duwiing the
financial year, The acquisition of Mehrl added five venues (o the Group's portiolio.

In UK venues, we grew admissions by 4% for the year, resulling in over 8.6 million admissions for the
year. Our goal in venue operafions s to provide o stage 1o compelling content. The content
presented in our West End venues won 50% of the awards at the 2019 Olivier ceremony, which is
a festament to the talent of our producing clienis and partners. Cur regional venues in the UK had

a strong year, with strong premium shows like The Band, Matildo, Motown and Wicked.

8



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

in the US, our admissions grew to 1.9 million, up by c. 95% vs. the prior year. This was largely driven
by strong conlen!, including the Lyric on Broadway compileting the first full year of Hamry Polter
and the Cursed Child, ihe opening of the Colonial with the world premiere of Moulin Rouge, strong

regional tours like Hamillon at the Saenger in New Crleans, and the acquisition of SFC.
FINANCIAL POSITION

The position of the Group ai the period-end is set out in the consolidated stalement of financial
position on pages 30 and 31, and in the related noles on pages 35 to 7).

Net Senior Debt
£2446.4 million
{2018: £171.4 million)

Highlights

T P

- Cash from operating activilies has decreased by £34.1 miliion driven by a year on yeor
operating profii increase of £6.2 million which is offset by a movement in working capitd of
£16.2 million. Provisions ulilised of £17.1 milion for completion of acquisition eamoul

poyments have also negalively impacted the Group's operoling cash.

- Investing cash flows include £28.5 mition of copital expendilure and intangible assels
invested taimprove the quality of the venues as described above and o invest in operating

infrastructure and systems, plus £0.3 million net invesiment in show investments in the period.

- The business debi facilities were refinanced during the period. Allhough net senior debt is
higher year on year, the closing cash position of the group is £12.2 millien higher which
includes a decraased escrow balance of £7.4 million (2018: £20.1 million). Buring the period.
no drawdowns were made on the RCF facility, resulting in £75.0 million being unutilised ot

the end of the year.



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUVED)

Leverage and liquidity

The Group performed comforfably within its debt covenant throughout the period.

An amendment and restatement of senior debt was completed during ihe period, which extended

the repayment terms to 2023.

Net Senior Debi at 30 March 2019 of £244.4 million [£358.0 milion of senior debl. net of cash
[excluding escrow) of £91.6 million) was £75.0 milion higher than the balance of £191.4 million al 31
March 2018.

Cash As at 30 March 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of £99.0 million
(2018: £86.7 million), including escrow accounts which are held for use only in
connection with specific productions. The Group also had additional available
facilities of £75.0 milion [{2018: £39.0 million).

The cash balance increased by £12.2 million in the period.

£m

Operating cash flows 457
Investing cash flows (101.1}
Financing cash flaws 64.3
Net cash flows 8.9
impact of foreign exchonge 33
Movement on cash balance 122

Financing cosh flows include debt drawdowns of £100.0 million as a result of the
amendmeni and restatement of senior debt completed during the period and
the drawdown relating 1o the acquisition of the Smart Financial Centre, net of
finance lease and shori-lerm credil facility repayments of £4.3 milkon, and interest
and financing fees paid of £12.7 million.

10



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Bomowings

The Group has lotal available bank facilities of £433.0 million, of which £75.0 million

remains undrawn at the period end.

The senior debl is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the
Group. The senior facilifies agreement also requires the Group to comply with
certain covenants, As ai 30 March 2019 the Group was in compliance with its

covenants.

The Group also has other debt items, which are secured against the assets of its
shareholder, of £82.6 miflion {2018; £80.8 million). Interest is non-cash paying and
accrues at a total rale of LIBOR plus 1.5%. That debt is secured over the assels of
the Group's shareholder, and the facility expires in 2022.

There is a finance lease creditor of £89.7 million (2018: £89.0 million).

The maturity of the debt is shown in notes 19, 20 and 30 to the financiol siatemenits.

Lk



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT {CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's risks are monitored and managed through a framework of policies, procedures and

intemal controls. Policies and procedures are subject to board approval and ongeing review by

managemeni, The directors consider the following to be the Group's principal operational and

financial risks as at the dote of this report.

Operational
Risks

Downturn in
theatre

attendance

Lack of
available
opportunities
for value

Creation

Description

There are potential factors
oulside the Group's conirol
thal might impact theatre
attendance such as the
economic slowdowns or
recessions or other
exiraordinary events fike
{errorist attacks. Historically,
the theatre industry has
proven lo be resilient in the
wake of unexpected events

over previous periods,

Acquisitions and new business

veniures may not yield
expected resulls if potential
synergies and value creation
opportunities are nol

successfully realised.

Mitigation

The Group's dim is to attract custlomers with high
quality productions ond manage dark periods
through nururing and developing sirong
relationships with show producers, and investing in
the development of new show content. A weaker
pound as aresult of Brexit and political tension has
encouraged more theatre visits by overseas
tourists. In order to mitigate the risk 10 the Group's
customens arising from temorist attacks, securty

measures have been increased atl gl ATG venues.

Management has significant experence of
ocquisition and infegration aclivity and works with
third party advisors 1o ensure that appropriate due
diigence is camied oul prior {o acquisifion, and
that local laws and reguiations are followed.
Detailed, cross-funciional plans are created 1o
ensure that newly acguired businesses are
effectively and efficiently integrated into the

Group.

12



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUVED)

Operational Description

Risks {conlinued)

Cyber The rapid pace of change in
security technaology has evolved the
Group's operations but it has
also created a sophisticated

and complex set of security

issues.

Financial Descriplion

Risks

Liquidlity risk Liquidity risk is the risk that
cash may not be available to
pay obligations when they
fall due.

Interest rate The Group has significant

risk levels of floaiing rote
borrowings ond is therefore
exposed to the impoct of
interest rate iluctuations.

Foreign Foreign exchange risk is the

exchange risk risk of volatility due o a
change in foreign currency
exchange rates.

Mitigation

Threat management tools which were rolied out
across the Group are confinuously reviewed and
maintained by internal and external third party

specialists.

Mitigation

The Group monitors s liguidity requirements
closely to ensure that there are sulficient funds. In
addition, compliance with the covenants in the
senior facilities agreement is monitored.

The Group monifors its exposure to this risk on o
regular basis and is in the process of implementing
new treasury policies, which will govem the level
of debt that the business should be exposed to,
while considering the cost/benefit of entering into

interest rate swop arangements.

The Group's aclivities, pariicutarly within 1he USA,
Germany and Australia, expose it to an element
of financial risk of change in {oreign currency
exchange rates. The US dollar exposure acls as o
nalurat hedge for our US-backed investors and the

Euro and Australion Dollar exposure is limnited.

13
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

Operational Desciption Mitigation
Risks (continued)

Credit risk Credit risk is the risk that a The majarily of ticket sales are to the general
counterparty will be unable public who pay for their lickets in advance of
to pay amounts in full when shows faking place, and there is therefore limited
due. credit risk attached to these sales.

There are also sales via third party agents, with
whom the Group has long standing relalionships.
There is close monitoring of debtors who fail to pay
within the Group's coniractual payment terms,
Cash is invested with o number of different
banking partners, thereby reducing the risk of

conceniration.

Financial risk management is discussed further in nole 29.

14
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the importance of ifs environmenlal responsibilities, monitors its impact on
the environment, and designs and implements appropriate policies to minimise ony damage thai
might be caused by the Group's aclivities.

As reported in the 2018 annual report, venues are required to complete their own Project Blackout
surveys al least annually. The project identifies overnight energy waste issues and engages with
senior management, venue staff and the Group's Environmental Ambassadors to implement simple
“switch off" solutions. Results of the surveys highlight continued installation of LED buibs, including
sensor conlrols, with some venues progressing to quarterly mini-blackout surveys. In the US, the Lyric
Theatre and Kings Theoire. both use LED bulbs in lobbies and the ouditorium. There are
programmed night modes around the venues to reduce energy consumption. Procedural and

behaviourai change remains the focus for conlinuol improvement for energy efficiency.

QOur People

Number of employees ot 30 March 2019 Women Men Total
Directors of the company 1 4 5~
Other senior management 24 42 48
Employees 3,039 2,434 5,475

The Group complies with glt relevant legisiation including those specifically iargeted ot preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded through the organisation by the requisite policies.
The Group is commitied to ensuring the heglth. sofety and weilfare of its employees as far as is
reasonably proclicable. The Group seeks 1o ensure that statutory duties are met at all times ond
that it operates effective health and safety manggement.

The Group's policy is lo consull and discuss with employees, through unions, stoff councils, meelings
and company-wide surveys, matters likely to affect employees’ inferests. Information on mahters of
concem o employees is given through information bulletins and reports which seek to achieve o
common awareness on the par of oll employees of the financicl and economic factors affecting
Ihe Group's performance.

The Group continues to run its “Be a Slar” and “8e a Star Manager” training programmes, focusing
on Front of House and Box Office staff rom when they join the Group, developing their skills fo

15
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improve cystomer experience, and further along the line, the key aspects of people management.
The Group olso runs a two year "Rising Star” programme for some of our highest polential junior
staiff as well as a leadership course for senior managers “Leading Lights®.

The Group’s policy is to recruit disabled workers for those vacancies that they are able to fill. Al
necessaly assistance with initial fraining courses is given. Once employed, a career plan s
developed so as o ensure suitable opportunifies for eoch disabled person. Arangements are
made, wherever possible, for retraining employees who become disabled, to enable them to
perform work identified as appropriate 1o their aptitudes and abilities.

Social and Community Involvement

The Group recognises that regional theatres, both in the UK and USA. are rooted in the heart of

their local communities.

Many of the UK regional theatres have Crealive Learning depariments which take o leading role
in contiibuting to the social cohesion of their communities in partnership with charities, trusts and
arganisaitions nationwide, including several local authorities and further education partners. Over
the course of a year, Crealive Learning can boast more than 70,000 participants of all ages ond
abilities throughout the UK.

Peaple of a wide variety of ages and abilities paricipate in the Group's Crealive Learming activities.
Often inspired by the productions at venues, these can include workshops with visiting companies,
backstage tours and pre-show taks, and also Youth Theatres, summer schools and classes for
adults. In addition to this, many regionol venues are used for several weeks a year by local amaoteur
production companies,

In the USA, in addition to being a leading sponsor, the Majestic Theatre warks closely with the Los
Casos Foundation in the Foundation's efforts to produce the Joci Awards which provide over
$100.000 in scholarship money to students towards college. The Las Casas Foundation also holds
Camp Broadway for children ages 10 -17 in ihe Chorline McCombs Empire Theatre every August.
The theatre also continues to work with the San Antonio Symphony presenting o series of concerts

featuring major motion pictures with the orchestra playing the score live along with the film.

The Saenger Theatre presents an annuol Broadway Series in conjunctlion with New Qrfeans Theatre
Association, a non-profit organisation that awards schelorships and provides funding to provide
musical instruments for youth in the area. The theatre also hosts a charilable event, Toys for Tots,
designed to collect holiday gifts for disadvaniaged children in the New Orleans metropofitan areq.

16
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Strategic Report has been prepared solely to provide information fo shareholders 1o assess how
the directors have performed their duty to promote the success of the Group. The report contains
certain forward-loocking statements, which are made by the directors in good faith based on the
information available to them at the time thot the report was signed, but are subject to inherent
uncertainties underlying any forward-ooking information and as such should be trealed with

caution.
APPROVAL

This teport was approved and outhorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2019 ond

signed gpn its behalf by:

Sh Teo
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their repert and the financial statements {or the period ended 30 March 2019,
The directors consider the annual report and financial statements io comply with all aspecis of the

“Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity”,
DIRECTORS

The direciors who served during the periocd and to the date of signing the financial statements
{except as noted) were:

Anthony Ball
Mark Cornell
Sin&a Krnicé
David Leigh
Rabert Sudo
Shanmae Teo

Andrew Tisdale

The biographies of the curent directors are presented on poge 23,

The Group is majority owned by Providence Equity Partners through its investment funds, Providence
Equity Pariners VII-A LP and Providence Vil Global Holdings LP. Frovidence Equity Pattners is a global
alterngtive investment firm established in 1989 focused on aducalion, media. communications,
and information investments. The firm's private equity platform specialises in sector-focused buyout
transactions and growth capital investmenis. Providence Equily Partners made ils investment in the
Group through |E Luxco S.aur.l.

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors

which were made during the period and remain in force at the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the period after taxation amounted to £31.5 million (2018: £25.1 million).

£10.2 milion dividends hove been paid during the current period (2018: £nil). No dividends are
proposed in respect 1o the cument period.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

The Group has net current liabilities of £117.9 million (2018: £72.6 millian) and nel assets of £49.9
million (2018: £105.1 million) ot the period-end date. Met current liabilities include odvanced ticke!
sales of £139.0 million {2018: £128.2 milkon}, which represents tickei sales for shows that have yet lo
mature with a portion of this amount due fo flow 1o the Group. The Group has cash-setiled liabilities
due wilhin one yeor of £124.1 million which are exceeded by cument assets of £143.3 miltion.
Excluding the cash escrow accounts of £7.4 million, reduces this headroom 1o £155.9 millicn. The
Group is obliged to meet financial covenants as part of arranging senior debl. These covenants
are being met with comfortable headroom and forecasts indicate that this will continue to be the

cQse.

In addition, the Group benefits from long-established relafionships with major producers of shows
and a nelwork of supplier cantracts across difterent geographic areas. Shows go onsale up 1o 1B
monihs before ihe first peformance date which helps mitigate risk, provides financial security and

helps the Group monitor and forecast future performance.

Having preparad forecasts to cover the 12 monihs subsequent lo the date of signing the financial
statements, the directors have a regsonable expeclation that the Company and Group has
adequale resources 1o conlinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
conlinue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial
statements.

MATTERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certain matters {post balance sheet events, fulure developments, principal risks and uncertainties
and employee matters) are discussed within ihe Strategic Report, and incorporated into the

Directors' Report by reference.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR
Eoch of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms 1hat:

- so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit infoermation of which the Company’s
quditor is unaware: and

- the directar has taken oll the steps that he/she ought 1o have taken as o direcior in order to
make himself/herselt aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the

Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in cccordance with the provisions of 5418 of
the Companies Act 2004,

Deloitte LLP have expressed their wilingness to conlinue in office os auditor and a resolution to

reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2019 and
on its behalf

ShanMae Teo

Director

Registered office

28 §t. George Street
London

W15 2FA
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial staternents in

accordance with applicable law ond regulations.

Company iaw requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each finoncial period.
Under that law the directors have elecied to prepare the financial statements in accordonce with
International Finoncial Reporting Standards [IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under
company law the direclors must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of atfairs of the Company ond of the profit or loss of the
Company for that perod. In preparing these financial stalements, international Accounting
Standard | requires that directors:

propery select ond apply accounting policies;

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable information;

provide additional disclosures when complionce with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient fo enable users to understand the impact of particular fransactions, other evenits

and conditions on the entity's financial position and financiat performance; and
- make an assessment of the Company's abilily to continue as a geing concern.

The direclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounling recards thai are sufficient to show
and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the finoncial staternents comply
with ihe Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the ossels of the
Company and hence for taking reqsonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other imegularities.

The direclors are responsible for the mainfenance and integrily of the corporate and financial
information included on the Compony's website. Legislation in the Unifed Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of finoncial statements may differ from legislation in ofher
jurisdictions.

We confirm fthat to the best of our knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevont financial reporting
framewaork, give a true ond fair view of the assels, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss
of the Company and the underakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

21



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

- the Strategic Report includes a fairreview of the development and performance of the business
and the paosition of the Company and the underiakings included in the consolidation taken as
a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertqinties that they face: and

- the annual report ang financial siatements, taken as a whole, are fair, bolonced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the

Company's periormance, business model and sirategy.

This responsibility stoiement was approved by the Board of Direclors on 9 July 2012 and is signed

Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Mark Comell, Chief Executive Officer

Mark Cornell was appoinied Group CEQ of the Ambassador Theatre Group in May 2016, Prior o
this he was Managing Direclor of Soiheby's Europe and preceding that, spent 10 years at LYMH,
including President and Chief Executive Officer of Moet Hennessy USA and Chief Executive Officer
of Krug Champogne. Mark has vast experience in managing lorge organisations, as well as
successfully leading consumer-orieniated brands in the UK, Europe and the USA.

Anthony Ball, Non-Execulive Chairman

Anthony Ball became Chairman of Infernational Entertainment Holdings Limiled in December
2016 and has been a senior advisor of Providence Equity Partners since 2013. He has had a long
and successiul career in the media and entertainment industries in the UK and internationally, as
chairman of Kabel Deulschitand from 2005 to 2013 and as CEOQ of BSkyB. the largest pay-Tv
broadcaster in Europe. Prior to this, he was the CEO of the News Corporation/Liberly Meadia joint
veniure, Fox/Liberty Networks, which included the FX Networks, Fox Sports Net and over 20
regional sports channels throughout the U.S. He s a non-executive director of BT Group and
chairman of Porttand Communications. Anthony received a MBA from Kingston University and has

been aworded honorary doctorales from both Middlesex University and Kingston University.

Sinisa Krnic, Non-Exeeulive Diractor, Providence Equity Pariners

Sinisa Krmic is a director at Providence Equity Pariners, based in London and is responsible for
European tox structuring and compliance. Prior to joining Providence in 2007, Siniso worked at
Deloitte for nine yeors and most recently served as a directar in the mergers and acquisitions tax
group. Sinisa received a Moster of Physics from Oxford University.

David Lelgh, Non-Executfive Director

Dovid Leigh joined the International Enteriainment Holdings Limited board as a non-executive
director in October 2015. He is CEO at Study Group, a role he has held since March 2013. Prior to
joining Study Group, David was CEO of SHL, the global leader in talent assessment with a
presence in more than 50 countries. Prior 1o SHL, he was on the Executive Committea of Groupe
Steria, with responsibility for Business Process Cutsourcing. David's earlier background waos in
piivate equily {iFormation Group. a ioint venture between Geldmon Sachs, General Atlantic
Partners and the Boston Consuiting Group). consulting (McKinsey & Co) and iow [Herbert Smith}.
David has an MA in Social ond Political Sciences from Cambridge University and a post-graduate
legal qualification from the College of Law, London.

23



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

ShanMae Teo, Chief Financial Officer

Before joining the executive team in June 2016, ShanMae was a non-executive director of the
Company and a director at Providence Equity Partners. Prior te joining Providence Equity Partners
in 2007, ShanMae was & consultant at Bain & Company in London, where she tocused on projects
for private equity and corporate clients in industries including communications and information
services. consumer products and ulilities. Prior to Bain, she was with M/C Venture Pariners, a venture
copital firm focused on communications services investmenis. Previously, ShanMae worked at
Adero and Saloman Smith Bamey. ShanMae received g Master of Business Administralion from
INSEAD and a Bachelor of Science from Boston College.

Rober Sudo, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Robert Sudo is ¢ maraging director at Providence Equily Partners. He is also ¢ director of Bilé,
Clarion Events, HSE24, MasMébvil and Volia Limited. Prior to joining Providence Equity Parinersin 2004,
Robert worked as an analyst for Goldman Sachs in mergers ong acquisitions and corporate
finance. He received a Diploma in Business Administration from HHL Leipzig Graducote School of
Management,

Andrew Fisdale, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Andrew Tisdale is a managing director al Providence Equity Partners. He is also a direclor of Chime
Communication, Clarion Events. HSE24 and M7. Prior 1o joining Providence Equity Partners in 2008,
Andrew was giobol co-head of the media and communicalions group and o member of Morgan
Stanley's management committee for investment banking. During his 18 year tenure ot Morgan
Stanley, Andrew held various rotes within investment banking, including co-head of the media and
communications group for North and Soulh America ond, subsequently, the same role for Europe,
the Middle East and Africa. He also led Morgan Stanfey's investment bonking octivities in Brazil.
Andrew received a Maoster of Business Administration from the University of North Carclina ot Chapel
Hlt ang a Bachelor of Ars from Vanderbill University, He currently serves an the Board of Advisors
for the Yale School of Drama.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the audit of financial statements
Opinion

In our opinion;

In our opinion lhe financial statements of International Entertainment Finance Limited (the
‘company'}:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 30 March 2019 and of
its profit for the 52 week period then ended:

- have been properly prepared in gccordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Acl 2006.

We have audiled the financial siatements which comprise:

- ihe consdlidated statement of comprehensive income;

- the consolidaled and company statements of financicl position;
- the consolidoted and company statements of changes in equity;
- the consoliduted statement of ¢cash flows;

- the relaied netes 1 1o 33.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable taw and
IFRSs as adopied by the European Union,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our oudil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK} [I5As {UK}))
and applicable law. Qur responsibiiities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibifities for the audit of the financial stalements section of our report.

We are independent of the campany in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant ta ocur audit of the finoncial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting
Council's (the ‘FRC's'} Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Canclusions relating lo golng concern

We are required by 15As (UX) to report in respect of the following matters where:

- the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriale; or
the direclors have not disclosed in the financial stalements ony identified material
uncertainties that may cast significani doubt about the company's ability 1o continue to
adopi the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least tweive months from

the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Ofher information

The direclors are responsible for the other information. The other inlormation comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
excep! to the exterd olherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibifity is to read the olher
information and, in doing so. consider whelher the ofher information is materiolly inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. { we identify such malerigt inconsistencies of opparent material
misstotements, we are required to determine whether there is o material missiatement in the
financial sialements or o material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in 1he directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for

the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give ¢ true and fair
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

view, and for such internal control as ihe directors determine is necessary o enable the preparation
of tinancial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or eror.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible tor assessing the company’s
abilily o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

company or to cease operations, or have no redlistic alternative but io do so,

Auditor’s respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial siatements as a
whole are free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an avditor's
report ihal includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurence, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs {UK) will always detect a materici
misstalement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expecied to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the oudit of the financial statements is localed on the
FRC's website al: www frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinlons on other matiers prescribed by the Companies Act 2004

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the infarmation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements:
and

- the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with

applicoble legol requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
ihe course of the audit, we have nol identified any material misstatements in the strategic report
or the directors’ report.

Maters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in
owr opinion;

- adequate accounting records have not been kepl, or retumns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial stalementis are not in agreement with the accounting records and retuins; or

- cerlain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by low are nol made: or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

we have nothing to report in respect of these matiers.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapler 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Qur cudit work has been underfaken so that we mighi siate to
ihe company's members those matters we are required to state to themin an audilor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest exient permitted by low. we do notl occept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as o body, for our

audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

WG Tdie

william Farren, FCA (Senior Siatutory Audiior)
For and on behalt of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London

United Kingdom

q Jub 2009
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAIMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 30 MARCH 2019

52 week 3 week
period period
ended 30 ended 3i
March March

Note 2019 2018
£'000 £000

Revenue 3 443,180 357,512
Cost of sales (199.674) (1466.902)
Gross profit 243,506 200,610
Adminisirative expenses (214,810) [178,947)
Share of results of associates and joint ventwres 11 {371} 443
Operating profit 4 28,325 22,106
Other gains and 1osses 4 {17.24%) -
Finance income 7 1,314 1,208
Finance costs 8 (40,628} (41,907}
Loss before tax (28,238) (18,593}
Taxation ? (3,246) {6.550)
Loss for the peried (31,504) (25,143)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company (31,504} {25.887)
Nen-conirolling interests 24 - 744
Loss for the period {31.504) {25.143)
Comprehensive income
Loss for the period (31,504)  (25143)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or lass:
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations 9,622 {9.544)
Total comprehensive loss for ihe period (21,882)  (34.687)

Attnbutable to:

Owners of the Company {19.528) ({35.34B)
Non-controlling interests 24 {2.358) 681
Total comprehensive loss for the pericd {21,882) (34.487)

Al activity retates to continuing operations.
There are no material differences between the losses for the periods disclosed above and their
historical cost equivalents. The accompanying notes form part of and are o be read in conjunction

with these finoncial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 MARCH 2019
Consclidated Company
30 March 31 March 0 March 31 March
2019 208 2009 2018
£'000 £000 £000 £000

Investments 10.33 4,12% 3,818 262,575 262,576
Interests in associates and joint ventures 11.33 1.673 5,823 . -
Goodwill 12 348,475 287,274 - -
Intangible assets 12 11,945 5,496 - -
Froperty. plont and equipment 13 331,463 290,210 -
Deferred tax assets 22 4,713 4,714 - -
Non-current frade and other receivables 16 28,489 25.052 . -
Non-current assets 751,087 §22.587 242,575 262,576
Inventories 14 1.262 1.012 .
Investments in shows 15 5511 4,997 - -
Trode and olher receivables 14 57,540 78.845 - -
Cash ond cash equivalents i7 98,955 B4,749 -
Current assets 143,289 171.403 - -
Tolal assels 14,376 794,190 262,575  262,57%
Trade ang other payables ta 244,308 220.313 10,900 -
Obligations under finance leases 20 4,18% 4,128 - -
Provisions 21 12,484 19.790 - -
Current liabilities 281,163 24423 10.%00
Net current {{ablillies {(117.874)  [72.428) {10,900) -
Borrowings 19 451,102  334.144 - .
Obligations under finance leases 0 85,522 84,897 -
Defered tax liabilities 22 25,656 25,847 - -
Non-current liabililies 543,280 444 886 - -
Total Yabillites 844,443  489.119 10,900 -
Net assely 49,933 105.071 251,475 252,574




INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

AS AT 30 MARCH 2019

Consolidated Company
30 March 31 March A March 31 March
209 2018 200% 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Share copiial 23 2462 262 242 242
Share premium accounl 251,414 262,314 251,413 262.314
Translation reserve 22,288 12,664 . -
Revalualion reserve - - -
Accumulated deficit (204,031} (172,527} - -
Equity affributable 1o owners of the Company 69933 102715 251.875 242,574
Non-tontroling interests 24 - 2.356 - -
Total equity 69,933 105,071 251,675 262,574

The Compony has taken advantage of the exemptlion contained within section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 nal to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related
notes, The result for the year dealt with in the financial siatements of the Company was £nil {2018:
£nit}.

The financial siaiements of were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised lor issue on

9 July 2019, They were signed onils behalf by:

anMae Teo
Registered Number 08769976
Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 30 MARCH 2019

For the 52 Forthe 53
week week
peticd period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019 March 2018

£000 £000
Net cash generated from operating activities 25 45,645 79.769
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 26 {54,861) -
Acquisition of assets {2.430) -
Purchases of properly, plant and equipment (19.169] (11.969)
Purchases of infangible assets {9.352} 656
Non-cash movement on Leasehold improvermnent disposal {14,997} -
Proceeds from disposals of property, piant and equipment - 4,387
Invesiment in theatre development - (30.2435)
Nel invesiment in shows {273} {2,699)
Net cash used in investing activilies (101,082) {39,870
New bank lcans roised 100.000 34,000
Dividends paid {10.900) -
Repayments of borrowings {9.076) {6,908}
Repayment of obligations under finance leases {4,253} (6,322}
Interest received 1.220 1,208
Interest paid (7.616] (12,892)
Financing fees poid {5.057} (1.094)
Net cash generaled by financing activities 64,318 2,993
Net Incregse In cash and cash equivalents 8,921 49,890
Cash and cosh equivalents at beginning of period 84,749 42,8864
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,921 43,890
Foreign exchc@e {loss)/gain on cash 3,284 (6,028}
Cash ond cash equivalents at end of period 17 98,954 86.749

Thete is no cash held in the Company and as such no Company Siatement of Cash Aows have

been presenied,

The accompanying nates form part of and are 1o be read in conjunclion with these financial

statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 30 MARCH 2019

General information

International Enterlainment Holdings Limited {the "Group”) is a Company limited by shares,
incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act and is registered in England and
Wales. The address of the registered office is 28 5. George Streel, London, W1§ 2FA, United
Kingdom,

The principal activities of the compony and its subsidiaries (the Group) and the nalure of the
Group's operations are sef out in in the strategic reports on pages 2 1o 17.

These financial statements are presenfed in pounds stering becouse that is the cumency of the
primary economic environment in which the group operates.

Adoption of new and revised standards

Amendments o IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the cumrent period

in the curent year, the Group has applied a number of amendments 10 IFRSs and a new
interpretation issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) that are mandalonily
effective for an accounting periad that begins on or alter 1 January 2019,

The following new and amended FRSs were effective during the period bul had no maierial effect

on the resuits or position of the Group and Company for the period or comparative period:

- IFRS ? ‘Financial instruments’
- [FRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers'; and Amendments to IFRS 15, ‘Revenue

from contracts with customers’
{FRS ¥ Financlal instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provision af IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial fiability, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of

tinancial assets and hedge accounting.

IFRS ¢ introduces an 'expected loss' model for recognising impairment of tinancial assets held ol
amortised cosi. This is different from 1AS 3%, which had an incumed toss model where provisions were
recagnised only when there was objeclive evidence of impairment. This change of approach
reguires the Group to consider forward-looking information to calculate expected credit losses
regardiess of whelher there has been an impairment tigger. The adoption of IFRS 2 from | January
2018 resulted in no adjustmenis to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, comparalive figures have not been restated.
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IERS ? Financial Instruments {conlinued)

The application of IFRS 9 has also not resulted in a significant increase of impairment of financial
assets measured ot amorlised cost in the cumeni year as compared fo impairment recognised
under previous accounting policies. The Group has also considered the changes to classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities and hos concluded that the only material

impact is in relation io the re-finance of the loan as detailed in note 19,

IFRS 15

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Conlracts with Customers,

IFRS 15 did not have o materialimpact on the timing of revenue recognition for oll revenue streams
on the baosis that the Group's business does not typically involve long-term, multi-obligation
contracts with customers. There were no adjustments o the amounis recognised in the financial

statements and no restatement of the comparative for the prior financial year.
New and revised IFRSs in issve but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these finoncial statements the Group has not applied the following

new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are nol yel effective:

- IFRSI4 - Leases

- Amendments {o |AS 12 - income toxes on Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unredlised losses

- Amendments to IFRS 2 - Share-based payments', on clarifying how o account for
certain types of share-based payment fransaclions

- Amendmenis to IFRS 4 - Insurance controcts’

- Amendments 1o 1AS 40 - Investment property’

- Annual Improvements 2014-146 cycle

- Amendmenis to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Coniribution of Assets between an investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture'

- {FRIC 22 - Foreign curency  fransaclions and  advance
consideration
- IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty of Income Tax Treotments’
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New and ravised IFRSs In issue bul not yet effective {continued)

The directors do not expect thal the adoption of the Standards listed above will, once adopted.
have a materialimpact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods, excepl! as noted
below:

IFRS 14 Leases

IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, preparation ond disclosure of
leases for bolh portfies to a contract, i.e, the customer (“lessee”) and the supplier (“lessor”). It will
result in leases being recognised on ihe bolance sheet by lessees. as the dislinction between
operaling and finance leases is temoved. Under the new standard, on asset {the right to use the
leased item) and o financial liabikty lo pay rentals are recognised. The only exceplions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adeption date of 31 March 2012, 1t intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year
prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assels will be measured at the amount of the lease liability on

adoption |adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses|.

A preliminary ossessment indicates that the Group expects 1o recognise nght-of-use assels and
lease liabilities {ofter adjustments for prepayments and accrued lease payments) ot respectively
and approximolely £142 milion and £143 milion on 31 March 2019.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and finance costs are expected lo increase by
approximately £6.1 million and £11.3 million respectively as a resul! of adopting the new ruies. This

standard is not expected to have a significant effect on the Group's nancial statements.
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1 Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial sictements have been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting
Standords (IFRSs). The finoncial statements have also been prepared in accordance with FRSs
adopted by the European Union and thereiore the Group financicl stolements comply with Articie
4 of the EU |AS Regulation,

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conigined wilhin section 408 of the
Companies Act 2004 not to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related
noles. The profit for ithe year dealt with in the financial siatements of the Company was £nil (2018:
£nil).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. except for financiat
instruments thal are measured at fair values al the end of each reporfing period. os explained in
the accouniing pokicies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of {he
consideraiion given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price 1hot would be received to sell an asset or paid to fransfer a ligbility in on
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observabte or estimated using another valuation technique. In eslimating the
fair value of an asset or ¢ liability, the Group takes into accouni the charocteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or fiabilily ot the measuremeni date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidaled financial statements is determined on such o basis. except tor share-based
paymenl transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions thatl are within the
scope of 1AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities 1o fair value but are not fair value,
such as net reglisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in 1A3 34.

Operaling resulis

The operating results include transactions up 1o and including the Saturday on or preceding 31
March of each period.

Going concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expeciation
that the Compoany and the Group have adequate resources 10 confinueg in operational existence
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

for the foreseeable fulure. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounling in
preparing the financial statements. Further delails of which can be found in the Directors' Report,
on page 19.

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements incerporate the financial staterments of the Compony and
entities controlied by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company has
the power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, 1o variable returns from ils involvement with

the invesiee and has the ahility fo use its power to affect its returns.

The resulls of subsidiares acquired or disposed of during the period ore included in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income from the date the Company gains conlrol

undil the date when the Compuany ceases to control the subsidiary.

allintragroup assets and liabilities. equity. income, expenses and cash Hows relating fo fransactions

between the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein.
Those inferess of non-controling shareholders that are present ownership interests are initially
measured ¢t the non-controlling interests’ proporfionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-conlrolling interests
is the amount of those interests at inlial recognition plus the non-contraling inlerests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity.
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Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiares are accounted for using the acquisition melhod. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value. Acquisition-reloted costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideralion tronsferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the tair value of the acquirer's previously held equily
interest in the acquire (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets

acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Conlingen! consideration is measured al its acquisition-date {air value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combinalion. Changes in fair value of the contingent
ceonsideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted refrospectively, with
comesponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjusiments are adjusiments
that arise from additional information obtained during o maximum period which cannol exceed
one year from the acquisition date about tacts and circumstances that existed al the acquisition
date. Where changes nccur to conlingent consideration that is classified as an asset or liability. that
do nol qualify as measurement period adjustments, the conlingent censideration is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates with the coresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. To
the exteni that the terms of contingent consideration arrangements include service condifions.
consideration is treated as a cost of employment ond is recognised over the period to which the
service conditions relate.

The Group reports provisional amounis until the measurement period is completed.
Investments

invesimenis in subsidiaries are volued at cost less provision for impairment.
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Associates and joint crrangements

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significont influence and that is neither o
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participaie in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the invesiee but is nol control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint arangement is an arrangement of which fwo or more parfies have joint control. Joint control
is the confractually agreed sharing of control of an arangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities (i.e. activities that significantly affect the returns of the arangement)
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing conirol. Joint arrangements are classified inte

two types - joint operations and joint ventures.

A joint operation is g joint arangemenl whereby the parties that have joint caontral of the
arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets. and obligations for the ligbilities, retating
io the arangement. A joint ventyre is o joint arangement whereby the parties that have joint conirol
of the arangement (i.e. joint veniurers) have righis to the net assets of the arangement. The type
of joint arangement is assessed by considering its rights and obligations, by considering the siructure
and legal form of the arrangement, the contractual terms agreed to by the parties to the

arrangement and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances.

The assets and liabilities {and related revenues and expenses) of joint operations are recognised in

proportion to the interest in the arongement.

The resulis and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in these
financial statements using the equily methed of accounting. Under the equity melhod, an
investmenti in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated Stalement of Financial Position
at cost and adjusted thereafler fo recognise the Group's share of the profil or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associale exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate {which inciudes any long-term interasts that, in substance, form
port of the Graup's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising ils share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the exlent that the Group has incurred legal

or construciive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Goodwil

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairmeni at least annually.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwillis allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units expecled to beneiit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been dllocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its canmying amount, the impaoirment loss is allocated first to reduce the camying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of
the camying amount of each asset in the unit. An impoirment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

impaitment of non-current assels

Al each balance sheet date. the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets io determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment

lass. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually.

For the purpose of impairment tesling, goodwill is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating
unils {CGUs) or group of units that are expecied to benelit from that business combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the camying amount of the asse! under consideration exceeds
its recaverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the gsset.

if the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is gllocated first o reduce the canying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camying amouni of each asset in the unil. An

impairment ioss recognised for gaodwill is not reversed in d subsequenl period.

42



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 30 MARCH 2019

Investments in shows and co-production amangements

Investments in shows are stated at cost less amounts recouped to date, and provisions for any
amounts which the directors do not believe are recoverabie.

Production amongemenis are reviewed on a production-by-production basis and treated
bosed on the principles outlined above as either a subsidiary, an associale or joint venture or

joint amrangemeni.
Property, plant and equipment

Property. plont and equipment are stoled at cost less depreciation and occumuiated impairments.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated 1o wiite off the cost of fixed assels, iess their estimated

residual value, on a straight-ine basis over their expected wselul lives as follows:

Freehold buildings 40 to 50 years
Leasehold property Shorter of leasehold term and useful ite of 40 to 50 years
Fixtures and fittings 4 - 10 years, or over the period to he end of the lease of the

theatre if this is shorler

No depreciation is applied to the cost of assets in the course of consiruction. Freehold tand is not

depreciated.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets all have finite lives and are carried ot cost less accumulated amortisation and
dccumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on o stroighi-ine basis over their
estimoted usetul lives and is recognised in the administrative expenses line item.

The amorisation period for software is 4 years. The eslimated life of other intangible assets is

considered on an assel-by-asset basis ond is up to 10 years.

Inventory

Inventory is volued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for

obsolete and slow-moving items,
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Financlal instruments

Financiol assets and financial liabiiities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Posilion when the Group bacomes a party 1o the contraciual provisions of the instrument, and are

initially measured at fair value.

Transaction cosis that are directly ottribuiable to the acquisition or issue of financial assels and
tinancial liabilities, other than financial assels and financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or
foss (“FVTPL"), are added to, or deducted from, the fair volue of the financial assets or financial
fiabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or finoncial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immedialely in profit or

loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise caosh balances, call deposits and escrow-type accounts,
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand ond form an infegral par of the Group's cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
Statement of cash flows,

Trade receivables and accrued income

Trode receivables and accrued income are classified as loans and receivables and are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interesi method, less any impairment. Since trade receivobles
and accrued income ara typically due within one year, and the eflect of any effective interest is
immaterial, this equales to initial camying value less any impairment,

Bomowings

Loagns and Barrawings are initially measwed at fair volue, net of transaction costs. They are
subsecuently measured al amorlised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an elfective yield basis. The effective interest rate is a method of caleulaling the
amortised cost of a financial kability and of dllocated interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interesi rate is the rale that exactly discounts estimated luture cash payments through
the expected life of the financial iability. or, where appropriate, a shorter periad to the net canrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Trade payabies ond accruals

Trade payables and accruals are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest meihod. Since trade payables and accruals are typically
due within one year, and the effective of any effective interest is immaterial, this equates 1o initial

carrying value.

Finoncial guarantees

Financial guarantee coniracts are accounted for as insurance contracis.
Deferred Income

Amounts received by the Group for services performed in fulure are classified as defered income
and recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income when the service is
performed.

Retirement benefils

Paymenis to defined contribution retirement benefil schemes are recognised as an expense when
empioyees have rendered service entilling them to the contribwlions. Difierences between
contributions payable in the perod and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals

or prepaymentsin the balance sheet.

Retirement benefits (continued)

Where there are defined benefil schemes, if o retirement benegfit obligation arises. it is recognised
at fair value, net of any scheme assets, in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Finance
charges on the unwinding of discounied scheme obligations are recognised in the Consolidaled
Staterment of Comprehensive Income, wilth any actuarial ditferences arising being recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income.

Revenue

Revenue is recagnised at the fair value of the consideration received orreceivable and
represenis amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
nel of discounts, VAT and other salesrelated taxes. Revenue for the Group comprises several
elements, including:
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Venue rentol ond production-reloted services

Charges to productions in respect of services provided (such as venue rental and staffing,
brochure production and accounting services) are recognised ne! of sales taxes as those services
are provided.

Revenue from production-related services is recognised ot the date of performance of the show,

uniil which time it is held on the Statement ol Financial Position as Deferred Income.
Promotional services

The Group acts as promaoter for self-produced shows and shows produced by third parties.
Revenue from these services is recognised ot fair valve of consideration received, nel of sales

taxes, al the dale of perdformance of the show.
Markelting services

Revenue from the provision of marketing services is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. The fair value of consideration tokes into account tfrade
discountis, settlement discounts and volume rebates. Markeling services revenue is recognised net
of sales taxes aver the pericd that services are provided or as recoverable cosis are incurred, in
accordance with the terms of the contraciual agreement. When recorded marketing services

revenue exceeds the amounts invoiced to client, the excess s classified as accrued income,
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Revenue (continued)
Ticket sales

Revenue from licket sales represents the revenue earned from commissions, credit card charges

and similar charges. This revenue is recognised at the date the ticket is sold.

rRevenue from ticket sales where the Group is acting as selling agent {whether lor its own theatres
or for other UK venues) includes booking fees. commissions, and similar additional income
charged al the point of sale. These amounts are recognised nel of any sales taxes at the
fronsoction date. Such revenue is recognised os on ogenl rather than prncipal fransaction, ond
50 excludes the face value of the tickels sold.

Refail sales

Revenue from concession sales 1o customers at the Group's venues is recognised net of sales axes
ot the point of sale.

Other revenue

The Group provides various other services on an ad hoc basis, all of which are related {o is
principal activily. Related revenue is recognised at fair value over the period that such services
are performed and performonce obligations are met.

Joint operations

in relation 1o co-production arrangements, where a controlling or joint operation interest is held,
revenue includes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no controfling interes! is
held tumover represents net income from productions. Where equily accounting is applied, the

share of profil or loss is disclosed in the “share of resulis of associates and joint ventures” line.
Government grants

Income from government grants is recognised as defered income ond released to the
Consolidoted Statement of Comprehensive Income as the altached conditions are satisfied.
Where the grant relates to procurement of an ossel. the amount received is released 1o the
Consclidatled Statement of Comprehensive Income over the usefut life of the assel against
associated depreciation.
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Lleases

Finance leases are those where substantialy all of the risks ond rewards of ownership are assumed
by the Group.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group ot their fair value or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease paymenis, each determined at the inception of the
lease. The corresponding liahility to the lessor is included in the Consolidated as a finance lease
obligation.

The finance element of the renial payment is charged to the Consolidoted Statement of
Comprehensive Income as interest payable in order to reflect the imputed cost of finance on the
net obligaiion outstanding in each period.

Rentals under aperating leoses are charged to the Consolidated Stalemen’ of Comprehensive
income on o straight-line bosis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised os o liability

and recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Foreign currenciles

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each
Group Company are expressed in pounds stering, which is the functional currency of the

Company, and ihe presentational curency for the consolidated financial stalements.

Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated inio stering
at rales of exchange ruling at the balonce sheet dole, Transactions in toreign currencies are
translated inlo sterling ai the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Such exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profil or loss. Foreign exchange gains orlosses on loans that are effectively
invesiment instruments, such as where a parent Company makes a loan with no repayment terms
jo a subsidiary holding Company as part of acquisition consideration, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Results of overseas subsidiaries are transiated al average monthly rates. Assels and hiabilities of
overseqs subsidiaries are translated al the rote ruling at the bolance sheet date. Such exchange

differences arising are recognised in the transiation reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity,
Operating profit

Operating profit is stated ofter the share of results of associates but before finance income and
costs. other gains and losses and taxes.
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Finance income

Finance income is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they ore earned.

Finance costs

Finance costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incured.

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses are recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they are incumred.
Taxdtion

The tax expense represenis the sum of the tax currently payable and delered tax.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to iterms that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or direclly in equity, in which case the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equily respectively.
Where cumrent tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the

tax effect is included in the accounting faor the business combination.

Current tax is based on laxable profit for the period calculalied using tax rates that have been
enacted or subsianiively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deterred tax is recognised on temporary differences belween the camying amounts of assets and
liabkilities in the consolidated financial statements and the coresponding 1ax bases used in the
computation of laxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised lor ali laxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deduclible termporary
difterences to the extent that it is probabie that toxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary ditferences can be ulilised.

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill, from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit orinvestments in subsidiaries and associales, and interests in joint ventures, where the Group
is able {o conirol the reversat of the temporary diflerence and it is probable that the temporary
difference wil not reverse in the foreseeable fulure. The amount of deferred tax provided is based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assels and liabilities,

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the financial peried end date. A defered tax
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Deferred tax {continued)

asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assel can be uilised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or consiructive) as a
resull of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required 1o settle that obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

2 Crlical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the direciors
are required to maoke judgements, estimales and assumptions aboul the camying amounts of assets
ond licbilities that are not readily apparent rom other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors

that are considered to be relevant. Aciual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underying assumptions ore reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation unceriginty
Carrying value of non-current assets

MNotes receivable balances arise in relatfion to financing the redevelopment of venues via schemes
created by the US government to encourage financial institutions to invest inte redevelopment of
historic buildings. Management assesses the recoverability of these assets to determine that the
caying value is approprialely supported, whether the asset will be recoverable sither over the life
of the inshument or by other means. Given the naiure of the agreements, the cost of winding-up
the arangements at expiry is not a fixed amount, and therefore is uncertain. A meaningful sensiivity
cannot be performed on the eslimate involved due to the faclors outside of the control of the
Group.
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3 Revenue

The Group's revenue from exiernal customers by classification is detailed below:

52 week 53 week
period period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019  Moarch 2018

£'000 £000
venue Rental and Production Related Services 224,497 181,523
Promotional & Marketing Services 114,184 105,043
Ticket and Reiail Sales 95,124 74,103
Other 9,375 6,843
Total revenye 443,180 367,512

The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical location is detailed belaw:

52 week S3 week
peried pericd
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019 March 2018

£'000 £000
United Kingdom 207,985 208,751
Rest of Europe 124,324 74,277
North America 100,252 73,002
Asia 10,617 11,482
Total revenye 443,180 387,512
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4  Net Profit/ {Loss) for the period

Net profit/ (loss) for the period has been amived at atter charging/ {crediting}:

52 week B3 week
period period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019  March 2018

£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 14,852 15,046
Amonisation of intangible fixed assets 2 2472 2,446
Prafit on disposal of property, plant & equipment 25 - {4,293}
Operating lease charges 10,372 6,054
Staff costs é 121,184 101,051
Finance Income 7 (1,314) [1.208)
Finance costs 8 40,428 41,907
Other gains and losses 17,249 -

Other gains ond losses relate primorily to the unwind of the US tax credit structure, which was
entered into in order o rebuild the Saenger Thealre, foliowing its destruction during the passage
of Hurricane Katring in New Qrleans. The unwind resulied in a net non-cash one-off loss of £17.2
million, which comprised of a ane-off loss of £20.6 million as the value of Ihe properly (£31.0
million} was higher than the notes payable balance of (£10.4 million), which was waived by ihe
Cily of New Ortleans upon transier of the property. This loss was offsef by G net gain of £3.4 milon
from the initial transfer-in of the assets following the initial trigger of the unwind by the involved
third parties.
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5 Avuditor's remuneration

The andglysis of the auditor's remuneration is as follows:

52 week SIweek
period period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019  March 2018
£000 £000
Fees payable tc the Company's auditor and their
associates for the audil of
The cansolidated and parent financial
statements 308 303
The subsidiary financial statements 59 54
Total audit fees 347 357
Taxation compliance services 63 &0
Taxation advisory services 25 44
Tota!l non-audit fees 88 104
Total 455 441
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6 Staff cosis

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) wos:

52 week 53 week
period petiod ended
ended 30 31 March

March 2019 2018
Executive directors 5 5
Venue staff 4,041 3,457
Other 1,368 237
Total monthly average number of employees 5414 4,399
Their aggregate remuneration comprised: £'000 £'000
wages and salaries 110,438 22,225
Social security costs 9.03¢% 7.521
Other pension costs _ 1,707 1.305
Total aggregate remunerafion 121,184 101,051
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& Staft costs (continved)

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors ond key management personnel of the Group is set out below:

52 week S3week
period pericd
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019  Maorch 2018

£'000 £000
Remuneration of directors:
Salories, fees, bonuses, and benefits in kind 1,570 1,384
Money purchase pension contributions 20 23
Total remuneration of directors 1.5%0 1,408
Remuneration of directors and key rnanagement personnel.
Remuneration 3,684 3.093
Social security conlributions 540 4728
Pension 55 39
Total remuneration of key management personne! 4,259 3,560

Key management personnel are those who have significant influence over the operational
running of the business. During the period. retirement benefits were accruing fo 2 {2018: 3)
directors in respect of defined contribution schemes.

The highest poid director received remuneration of £1.072,500 (2018: £235.625). The value of
the Company's contribulions paid 1o a defined contribution scheme in respect of that individual
amounted to £10.000 (2018: £10.000}.

During the period. directors and key managemaent personnel received 1otal compensation for loss
of office totalling £nil {2018; £nil}, on which social security of £nil (2018 £nil) was paid by the Group.

Pensions

The Group operates deiined contribulion pension schemes. The assels of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The pension cost
charge represents contributions payable by the Group to the fund and omounied 1o £1,707,600
(2018: £1,305,000}. Contributions totalling £86,000 (2018: £104,000) were payable to the fund ot the
balonce sheel date.
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4  Staff costs (continued)

Emplayee benefit trust

The Group has no direct employee share scheme or share-based payment arrangement. However,

certain employees of the Group have acquired an interest in the equity of the holding Company via

an employee benefit trust in both the cumen! and prior periods.

7 Finance income

52 week 53 week
period peried
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £000
Interest income 1,294 1,165
Change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments - 561
Unwinding of discouni on long term receivables and payables 20 43
Finance income 1.314 1.338
8 Finance cosls
52 week 53 wesek
perlod period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2017 March 2018
£'000 £000
Interest on foans from parent undertakings 1,79% 17,788
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 13,747 17.098
Interest on obligations under finance leases 4.1¢ 4,918
Amortisation of financing fees ,502 2,103
Feir vafue losses on financial instruments 30 18,441 -
Finance cosis 40,428 41.907
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¢ Taxation

Analysis of fax charge/ (credit) in the period

52 week 53week

period period

ended 30 ended 31

March 2017  March 2018

Current tax £'000 £'000

Tax charge on loss for the period 4,065 4,554

Adjustment for prior periods . 1,972

Total current tax 4,055 6,524
Deferred tax 29

Delerred tax charge / [credit) current year {583) {1,114)

Change in tax rate - 2776

Adiustments in respect of prior periods (218) (1,638)

Total deferred tax (799) 24

Tax on loss 3,264 6,550

Corporation tax Is calculated af 19% {2018: 19%) of the esfimoled taxable profil lor the period.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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9 Taxation {continved)
The charge/ {credit} tor the period con be reconciled to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income as follows:

52 week 53 week
period period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019  mMarch 2018

£'000 £000
Loss before tax {28,238) (18.593)
Loss multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the {5,365} (3.533)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 10,001 7.817
Adjustmenis to tax charge in respect of prior periods (218) 334
Utilisation of tax losses - {34}
Effect of difierent rate for deferred tax {84} 2.682
Movemeni in unrecognised deferred tax ossets 16 90
Effect of different rates of subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions 259 633
Theatre tax credit {1.345) 655
Other reconciling differences - {1.459)
Tax charge/(credit) for the period (see nole above) 3,254 6,550

ihe finance Act 2014 provides for reductions in the main rate of comporation tax from 19% 1o 17%
from 1 April 2020. These rofe reductions have been reflected in the colcuiation of UK deferred tax
af the baolance sheet date as appropriate. The closing UK deferred tax liabiity as al 3¢ March
2019 has been calculated at 17% reflecting the tox rate ail which the deferred tax liability is
expecied io become payable.

Defered tax liabilifies have not been recognised in respect of refained eornings of overseas
subsidiories. Refqined earnings of overseas subsidiaries are expected to be reinvested indefinitely

or remitted to the UK free from further {axalion.

Deferred tax assets on caried lorward unutifised losses in Australia of £2,270,000 {2018: £1,730,000)

have not been recognised.
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9 Taxation {continued)

Thete are carried forward unutiised tax losses in the UK of £351,000 {2018: £269.000) resulting in a

deferred tax asset which has not been recognised. None of these losses have an expiry date,

The tax creditor in the UK is £2,094,000 and the creditor for Germany is £4.024,000.

There is o deferred tax liabilily of £26,656,000 and a deferred tax asset of £4,713.000.

10 Investmenis

The direcily and indirectly held subsidiaries are listed in nole 33,

Group As at 52
weak As at 53
period week period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019 march 2018
£000 £000
Cost and Net book value
Listed investments 1 2
Unlisted investments 4,128 3816
investments 4129 3818
Company As at 52
week As at 53
peried week period
ended 30 ended 31}
March 2019  moarch 2018
£'000 £000
Cost and Netf book value
Subsidiary investments 262,575 242,575
investments 242,575 262,575

The Group's unlisted invesiments relate to its investment in Kings Theotre Redevelopment

Company LLC, a company incorporated in the United States of America of which the Group
owns 1.08%.

Puring the periad ended 31 March 2018, the loan from the parent company {E Luxco 5.4r1.l was
refinanced in ¢ mixture of an additional share issue and additional external debt. The additional
share issue resutted in an increase in the investment held in a subsidiory of IEH Limited. Refer to note

20 for further gisclosure.
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11 Interests in associates and joint ventures - Group

As at 52
week Asal 53
period week period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019  march 2018

£000 £000
interests in joint veniures 374 1,061
inferests in associates 1.279 4,762
Interests in associates and joint venlures 1,673 5823

Joint ventures

The Group has inlerests in o number of individually immaterial Joint Ventures which take the form
of both productions and businesses. Each investment is structured as a separate vehicle and lhe
Group has a residual interest in the nel assets of the investment. Accordingly. the Group has
classified its interests as joint ventures. For same of the productions, the Group is entifled to less than
50% of the produclion earnings however the production agreement requires unanimous consent
in decision making resulting in joint control.

The following table anatyses, in aggregate, the carmrying amount and share of total comprehensive
income of these Joint Ventures.

The following companies have a year end date different to the Group's accounting financial year
end of 30 March 2019:

- HP West End: 31 Cclober 2018
- JB UK Tour iI: 31 December 2018

This is as a result of of the entities not talling under ATG and therefore slructure is put in place in line

with shareholder's expectations.

For the purposes of applying the equity method of accounting, the financial statements of HP West
End (for the year ended 31 October 2018}, and JB UK Tour il {for the year ended 31 December 2018}
hove been used, and appropriate adjustmenis hove been made for significont ransactions
between those dates and the 30 March 2019,

The joint ventures are not restricted in their ability 1o transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash

dividends, or to repay loans or advances by the entity.
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11 Interesls in associates and joint ventures - Group (continved)

As at / 52
week As ot

/33

period week period
ended 30 ended 31

March 2009 March 2018
£'000 £000
Carrying amount of interests In Joint Venlures 3% 1.061
Share of total comprehensive income {371) {549}
Associates
As at 52
week As at 53

period week period
ended 30 ended 3)
March 201% mmarch 2018

£'000 £000
Carrying amount of interests In Joint Ventures av4 1,061
Share of tolal comprehensive income {37) {5&9)
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12 Intangible assets - Group

Qther intangible asseis relate to asseis recognised of {air value on acquisition of subsidiaries.

Total
Other - Intangible
Software Intangtbles Assets  Goodwilll Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 26 March 2017 8,857 6,849 15,704 297,840 313,548
Additions 420 2 422 - 422
Recognised on acquisition of o subsidiary {1,500} - (1,500} - {1,500)
Exchange differences 154 (291} {137) {2.937) {3.074)
Al 31 March 2018 7,931 6,560 14,491 294,903 309,374
Additions 9.352 - 9,352 - 9.352
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiary:
- Mehrt Entertainment GmbH 538 - 538 38,692 39,230
-ACESLLLC - - - 36,947 35,947
- Theatre Management Holdings Limited - - - 5,255 5,255
Disposals - - - - -
Exchange differences (902} (62} {v64) 157 (807}
At 30 March 201¢ 16,919 6.498 23417 375,954 399.3N
Accumulated amerfisafion and impairment
At 26 March 2017 4,622 2,228 6,850 7.523 14,373
Charge for the 533 week period 1.835 431 2,444 - 2,446
Disposals [261) - {281} - (261)
Exchange differences {77) (183) {260} 106 (154)
At 31 March 2018 4,119 2,676 8,795 7.629 14,424
Charge for the 52 week period 2,147 725 2,872 - 2,872
Disposals - - - - -
Transfers - - - - “
Exchange differences {1} (194) {195} {150} {345)
At 30 March 2019 8,245 3,207 11,472 7,47% 18,951
Carrying amount
Al 31 March 201¢ 8,454 3.2 11,945 358,475 380,420
At 25 March 2018 1,812 3,884 5,498 287,274 292,970
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12 Intangible assels - Group (continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combinction is allocated. at acquisition, 1o the cash generating
units {CGUs} or group of units that are expected to benefit from that business combination. The

carrying amount of goodwill had been dliocated to the following Groups of CGUs:

30 March

2019

£'000

United Kingdom 254,456
USA 59,498
Maintand Europe 40,943
AKA 13,578
Total goodwill 348,475

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if 1here are indications that
goodwill might be impaired. The recoverable amounis of the CGUs and the group of units are

determined from value in use calcukations.

The impairment reviews for Uniled Kingdom, USA, Mainland Ewope and AKA do not indicate any
impairment is required. The values for the key assumptions were arived at by taking into
consideration historical information and comparisen o external sources where appropriate, such

as market rates for discount factors.

Budgeied cash flows - the calculation of value in use has been based on the cash flows
forecastin the 2020 three year plan growth assumptions, consistent with a fixed growth rate
for the remaining two years for the subseguent years unfil 2024, Growth rates beyond this
are in line with forecasts of the International Monetary Fund relevant to each geographical

jocation.

Pre-tax discount rates of between 7.48% (2018: 2.98%} ond 7.78% {2018: 10.51%) were

applied to each territory,

Terminal growth rates of between 0.4% (2018: 2.60%) and 3.0% (2018: 2.70%) were opplied
te each temitory.

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the growth rales included within the impairment

maodel for each CGU. The sensitivity analysis resulted in no impairment for each CGYU.

The Company has no Intangible assets (2018: £nil).
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13 FPropery, plant and equipment - Group

tong-term Short-term

Freehold leasehold |easehold Assels under Axtures
propearty  properlty  property construchtion and fitings Tolal
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Group
Cost
At 25 March 2007 151.294 109,252 7,119 - 48,977 314,842
Additions - 25,782 - 7.481 10 676 43,939
Disposals - - {552) - {3.918) {4.470)
Transier lo assels held lor sole - - - (714} 716 -
Exchange differences (9} {5.851) - [244) [541) {6.647)
At 31 March 2018 151,285 129,183 5,567 6.51% 55,910 349,454
Additions 2.540 7.009 234 868 12,779 23,432
Acquisition of subsidiary 10,000 - 15.5964 4,956 30.520
Exchange differences 1219) 4,494 - 3i5 492 5,084
At 30 March 2019 163,406 140,488 22,347 7,702 74,137 408,500
Accumvulated depreciation and impairment
Al 25 March 2017 11,130 19,301 3N3 - 16,241 49,785
Charge for the 53 week period 2812 3,258 647 8,329 15.044
Disposals - - {59} {4 351} (4.410)
Exchange differences {1y {971} - {195} (1.147)
Al 31 march 2018 13,941 21,588 3,704 20,024 5v.254
Charge for the 52 week pericd 2.898 4,475 644 8833 14,6852
Exchange differences {3} &77 - - 257 1
Al 30 March 2019 18,834 26,740 4,347 - 29114 77.037
Net book value
Al 30 March 2019 145,770 113,948 18,020 7,702 45,023 331,443
Al 31 March 2018 137,344 107.5%5 2,846 8,519 35.886 290,210

The Company has no property, plant and equipment [2018: £nil}.
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14 Inventorles - Group

30 March 31 March
2009 2018
£'000 £000
Finished goods and goods for resale 1.242 1,012
The Company has no inventory {2018: £nilj.
15 Investments in shows = Group
30 March 31 March
my 2018
£000 £000
Investments in shows 5,511 4,997
The Company has no invesiments in shows {2018; £nil}.
14 Trade and other receivables = Group
30 March 31 March
2019 2018
£'000 £000
Notes receivable 11,787 6,038
Long tesrm receivable for developer fee 5,529 5138
Cther non-current receivables 11,373 13,878
Amaoaunts receivable after more than 12 months 28,689 25,052

The notes receivable balance comprises amounts receivable from counterparties in relation to the
financing struciure of the redevelopment of Hudson Theatre via a well-used arrongerment created
by the US government to encourage financial institutions to invest into redeveicpment of historic
buildings. Interest is receivable at rates between 0.48% and 0.5%. These will be recoverable from
the counterparties either over the life of the instrument or by transier of leasehold interests. The long-

termreceivable relates to abalance acquired os part of the ACE acquisifion and is a fee for theatre

development services provided which will be paid over a number of years.
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16 Trade and other receivables - Group (continuved)

30 March 31 March

2019 2018

£'000 £000

Notes receivable - 18,710
Trade receivabiles 36,173 28,951
Prepayments and accrued income 15,744 16,711
Corporation tax receivable - 235
Other receivables 5,641 14,238
Amounts receivabte within 12 months 57,560 78,845

The Company had no trade and other receivables {2018: £nil}.

All impoaired frade receivables have been provided to the exient they

are believed not o be

recoverable. The moximum exposure to credil risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each

class of receivable. The Group does not hold any collateral os security. Assets which are neither

past due nor impaired are considered fully recoverable,

Analysis of frade receivable ageing

Credii risk manogement

Credif risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its coniractual obligations resulling in

financial (035 10 he Group. As of 30 March 2019, some of the Group's Irade receivables were due

and/or past due but not impaired. These relate 1o a number of independent custorners with no

material concentration within any one customer and no custormers who are of particularly high risk

of default, The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

30 March 31 March

2019 2018

£'000 £000

Up to 3 months 23,448 16,138
3to 6 months 2,781 1,128
Over 6 months 5719 5,547
Total 31,9468 2281

As of 30 March 2019, the Group also held past due frode receivables which had been provided

for.
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14  Trade and ofher receivables — Group {continved}
Analysis of trade receivable ageing {continued)

30 March 31 March

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Up to 3 months 430 1,169
3 to 6 months 81 1,058
Cver 6 months 37 748
Total 548 2,974

Under IFRS 9, the Group is required o ulilise objective evidence as well as consider forward
looking information ond the probabilily of default when calculaling expecied credit losses. The
maturity of financial assets is iherefore used as an indicator as to the probability of defauit. The
adoption of IFRS 9 did not result in a material change in the loss allowance and impairments

recognised under IFRS ¢ compared to that held under 1AS 39.
17 Cash ond cash equivalents - Group

30 March 31 March

209 208
£'000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents held in own accounis 91,804 66,614
Cash and caosh equivaients held in escrow 7,350 20,135
Cash and cash equivalents 98,958 86,749

The Company has ne cash and cash eguivalents {2018: £nil].
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18 Trade and other payables - Group

30 March 31 March

2019 2018

£000 £000
Trade payables 34,285 28,472
Deferred income 138,959 128,166
Accruals 65,101 40,736
Notes payable - 9,943
Other taxation and social security 7.879 1.444
jax Creditor 4118 4,897
Other payables 10,707 S.648
Government granis received and not utilised 1,259 1.005
Trade and cother payables due within 12 months 264,308 220,313

The Compoany has an intercompany payable of £10.9 million (2018, £nil).
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19 Bomowings - Group

30 March 31 March

209 2018

£'000 £000
Bank ioans - senior debt 348,533 253,374
Bank loans - other 82,559 80.770
Borrowings 451,102 334,144
Amount due for settiement cfter 12 months 451,102 334,144
Borrowlngs 451,102 334,144

The bank loans — senior debt, are secured by a charge over the assets of internclional

Entertainment Finance Limited, ¢ subsidiary of the Company and the majority of ifs subsidiary

undertakings. These loans bear interest at a rate which Huctuates in line with LIBOR with a margin

ranging between 4.25% and 4.75% and are governed by a senior finance agreement with

requisite covenants.

The Group also has other debt iterms, which are secured against the assets of its shareholder, of

£82.6 million {2017 £80.8 million). Interest is non-cash paying and accrues ot a total rale of LIBOR

plys 1.5%. Thai debt is secured over the assets of the Group's shareholder, and the facilily expires

in 2020.
30 March 31 March
2019 2018
£000 £'000
Bank loans - senior debt 358,000 258,000
Bank loans - senior debt FVIPL 18,661 -
Bank loans - other 82,548 80,770
Unamortised Enancing fees {8,127) (4.626)
Net bank loans 451,102 334,144

On % August 2018 the Senior Finance Agreemeni belween the Group and its lenders was

amended and restated. The aim of the refinance was to extend the lerms of the financing

agreement to 2023 and provide additional funding availability.

The Company does not have any Borowings (2018: £nil}.
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20 Obligations under finance leases - Group

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease

paymenis
30 March 31 March 30 March 31 March
219 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Within one year 4,244 4,202 4,169 4,128
In the second to fifth yeors inclusive 17.403 17.231 14,987 14,839
Affer five years 409,578 414,078 72,732 72,287
431,225 435,51} 91,828 91,255
Less: future finance charges {339,337} {344,256}
91,888 21,255 91,888 91,255
unamortised finance costs (2.197) (2,230} (2.197) {2,230)
Present volue of lease obligaﬁons 89,491 89,025 89,491 89,025
Armouni due within 12 months 4,149 4,128
Amount due after 12 months 85,522 84,897
89,691 89.025

The Group leases certain properties under linance lease arrangements. The average iease term is
75 years. The Group does nol have the oplion to purchase 1he properties for a nominal value at
the end of the legse terms, and the Group's obligalions under the finance leases are secured over
the properties being leased.

Interest rates underlying all ebligations under finance leases are implicit rates ranging from 5.3% 1o
5.8% (2018: 5.3% t0 5.8%).
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21 Provisions - Group

Acquisitlon-
relafed
provisions Dilgpidations Other Total
Group £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2018 7.6N 433 - B.304
Additions 10,171 1535 1,160 11,486
Release - - - -
At 31 March 2018 17,842 788 1,160 19,790
Addittons - - - -
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiany 11,879 - - 11,879
Release (18.380) {155) (448) {18.983)
Al 30 March 201% 11,341 633 712 12,684

Acquisitien-related provisions relale to earn out agreements in respect of the acquisitions of Mehr!

Group in the 52 week period ended 30 March 2019. The consideration is payable dependent on

success factor criteria over the next three years,

Dilapidalions relate to the expected level of dilapidations for certain theatres. The adequacy

of the provisions are periodically reviewed to ensure that they will meet the final obligations.

Other provisions primarily relote fo the possibility thal shows may be cancelled or loss-making.

These provisions are caicufated on the basis of management’s estimates of the velume of such

events that are expected and the polential value of thelr impaoct on the Group’s profit or loss.

The Company has no provisions [2018: £nit).
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22 Deferred tax - Group

Accelerated
Revaluation lax Acquisition Other Hming

of preperty deprecialion intangibles Tax losses  diiferences Tolal
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

At 25 parch 2017 25.534 {1.282) 1.038 {213 {4,259} 20,818
FX 299 291
Charge to prolit or toss {395) 588 {330) {619} 480 24
AP ST hurcﬁ 2018 25,139 (594) 708 {832) {3.288) 21,133
Recognised on acquisition of subs ciary - 5 i.603 - - 1.408
Charge / (Credit) to prafit or loss {682} {65) 11i2 [1.610 1,670 (799}
Al 30 March 2019 24,457 {554} 2.19% (2,442) {1.618) 21.942
3 March 31 March
2019 2018
E'000 £000

Defemed iax liabilities 256,856 25.847
Oefered 1ox assels {4.713) {4.714)
Net deferred tax liability 21,943 21,133

Deferred tax assets are expected to be reglised by profits generaled in future vears in each

relevant teritory.

The Company has no deferred tax {2018: £nil).

23 Share capital - Group and Company

Authorised, issued and fully paid:
262,147 Ordinary shares of £1 each

As at 52

week As gt 53
period week period
ended 30 ended 31
March 2019  March 2018

£'000

262

£000

262

No share issue has taken place during the period ended 30 March 2019.

24 HNon-controlling interests - Group

The Group acquired the remaining percentage of shares in in the Saenger Aggregator Leverage

Lender LLC and BB Group GmbH ond subsidiaries during the period.
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25 Notes to the cash flow siatement

Net cash generated by operaling activities

for the 52 For the 53

week week

period period

ended 30 ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

£'000 £000

Operating profit 28,325 22,106
Amorisation of infongible fixed assets 2872 2,466
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16,852 15,044
Share of results of associates and joint veniures (371) {443)
Loss/{profit) an disposal of property, plant ond equipment - {4,293}
Movement in non-cash payables {10.629) -
(Decrease}/increase in provisions (6.905) 10.175
Operating cosh flows before movements in working capital 30,144 45,057
Increase in inventories {104} {283)
Decrease/{increqse) in receivables 0,974 {14,454}
[Decrease)/increose in Payables 8,964 49,776
Cash generated by operating activities 48,978 80.096
Corporate tax poid {3.293) {327)
Nel cash generated from operating activities 45,685 79,749
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25  HNotesto cash flow statement {continued)

Mel debt reconciliation
As at 52

week As at 33

period week period

ended 30 ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

€000 £'000

Cash and Cash equivalents 98,954 84,747

Borrowings - repayable alter one year (45%,102) {334,144)

Net debt {352.144) {247,39%)

Cash and liquid investments 98,954 86,749

Gross debt - fixed interest rates {451,102) {334,144)

Net Debt (352,145) [247,395)

Liabilities

from

financing

Ofher Assels aclivities

Borrowings

Cash at due after
bank one yaar Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Net debt as at 31 March 2018 B&,749 (334,144) (247,395)
Cash flows 8,921 {94.943) (B6,022)
Foreign exchange adjsuitments 3.286 - 3,286
Other non-cash movement - {22,015} {22,015)
Net debt as at 30 March 2019 98,956 (451,102} (352,146)
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26 Acquisition of subsidiaries

Buring the period, 1he Group acquired 100% of Ihe shore capilal of the following companies:
- Mehr] Entertainment GmbH {Germany)

- Theatre Management Holdings Limited (UK), and

- Arls Center Enlerprises — Sugar Land, LLC, USA (referred to as Smar Financial Centre)

The Group also completed the ocquisition of the remaining 10% of share capital in BB Group
{Germany),

24.1 Meh Entertainment GmbH

On 25 May 2018, the Group ccquired all of the issued share capitol of Mehr! Entertainment GmbH
{"Mehrl”), obiaining control of the entlity ond its subsidiaries. Mehr!, like the Ambassadors Theatre
Group, another wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, combines the operalion of venues, with
content production, programming and ticketing for all of its venues. Mehil Currently operates five
venues, hamely, Hamburg Thealre, the Admiralspalast in Berlin, ihe Capitol Theatre in Dusseldort,
the Musicol Dome in Cologne and the theatre in Bochumn, which have been home to the long
running musical Stasrhight Express. The acquisition of Mehr! supports the Graup's sirategy of acquiing
and developing independently managed, complermeniory live entertainment ond theatre-related
aclivities, principally in the UK, USA, Germany and Australia.

Additienal consideration is poyoble contingent on the commercial success of certain theatres and
compielion of licensing conlract negoliations. It is expected that the consideration will be fully paid
by the percd ending 31 May 2021. Based on projected resulis and state of negotiations ot
acquisition the fair value of expected consideration payable ot acquisition was deemed to be
£12.1 milien. The potential undiscounted amounti of all future payments that the Group could be
required to make under the conlingent consideration arrangement is imited o £11.1 miliion.

Goodwil recognised consists of infangible benefils associated with the tronsaction bul not eligible
for separate recognition such as workforce expertise and synergies expecied to be achieved.

MNone of the goodwill is expected fo be deductible for corporalion tox purposes.

Al assels ond liabilities acquired were recognised at their fair value. There were no identiliable
intangible assets.

Acquisition-related costs (included in administrative expenses) amounted to £Nit {2018: £1.2 million).
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24.1 Mehil Entertainment GmbH (continued)

Mehr! Entertainment GmbH contributed £44.6 million revenue and a foss of £0.3 million 1o the

Group's prefil for the period between the dale of acquisilion and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisiion of Mehf! Enterfainment GmbH had been completed on the first day of the

financial year, group revenues lor ihe year would have increased by £6.3 million and the group

profif wouvld have decreased by £0.9 miflion,

£000
Property, ptant and equipment 19,246%
Infangibles 538
Cash 11,395
Inventaries 113
Trade and other receivables 3,728
Trade and other payables {34,425)
Borrowings {9.128)
{8.510]
Gaodwill 8,707
Totol consideraiion 30197
Satisfied by:
Cash 18,122
Contingent consideration 12,075
Total consideration 30,197
Net cash outflow arlsing on acquisition:
Cash consideration 18,122
Less: cash and cash equivalent bolonces acguired (11,325)
MNET Cashilow 6,727
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25.2 Theatre Management Holdings Limited

On 19 December 2018, the Group acquired all of the issued share capilal of Theatre Management
Holdings Limited and it's subsidiary company, Theatre Maonagement Limited. Obtaining 100%
control of both entities. The acquired businesses operate a venue that is similor to other venues
within the Group's portiolio of venues, focusing on hosting theatrical performances. The aequisition
of Theatre Management Holdings Limited supports the Group's slrategy of acquiring and
developing independently managed. complementary live entertainment and theatre-relaied

activities, principally in the UK, USA, Germany and Austratia.

Goodwill recognised cansists of intangible benefils associated with the transaction but not eligible
for separate recognifion such as workiorce expertise and synergies expected o be achieved.
None of the goodwill is expecied o be deductible for corporation fax purposes.

All assets and liobililies acquired were recognised at their fair value. There were no identifiable

infangible assets.

Acqguisition-related costs (included in aodministrative expenses) amounted 1o £0.2m, of which £nil
were incurred in the previous financial period.

Theatre Manogement Heldings Limited did not contribute o the Group's profil for the period

between the daie of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

if the acquisition of Theotre Management Holdings Limited had been completed on the first day of
the financial year, group revenues for ihe year would have increased by £ 0.9 million and the group
profit would have decreased by £0.4 million.

77



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 30 MARCH 2019

246.2 Theatre Management Holdings Limited (confinved)

Propery, piant and equipment

Cash

Inventories

frade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Deferred tax liability recognitions on acquisition

Goodwill
Toiat consideration

Satisfied by
Cash

Total consideration

Net cash oulllow arlsing on acquisition:

Cosh consideration

Less: cash and cash equivalent balances ocquired
NET Cashflow
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£'000
10,381
202

5

555
(2,581)
(1,603)

6.9460
5,255
12215

12,215

12,215

12,215
{202)
12,013
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26.3 Arts Center Enterprises - Sugar Land, LLC (Smart Financial Centre)

On 7 January 201%. the Group acquired all of the issued share capital of ACE 5L, LLC obtaining
100% caontrol of the entity. Similar to other venues within the Group's portfalio of venues, the business
owns @ single venue within the city of Sugar Land Texas, USA and is focussed solely on hosting
perormance events ond concerts. The acquisition of ACE 5L, LLC suppors the Group's strategy of
acquiring and developing independenlly managed, complementary live entertainment and

theaire-related activities, principally in the UK, USA, Germany and Australia.

Goodwill recognised consists of intangible benefits associaled with the transaction but not eligible
for separate recognition such as workforce expertise and synergies expected to be achieved.

None of the geodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

All assets and liobilities acquired were recognised at their fair value. There were no identifiable
intangible assels.

Acquisition-related costs (included in administrative expenses) amounted to £0.1 million, of which

£nil were incurred in the previous financial period.

Arts Center Enterprises Sugar Land LLC contributed £3.2 million revenue and £1.0 million to the
Group's profit for the period between the date of acguisition and the balance sheet date,

If the acquisition ot Arts Center Enterprises Sugar Land LLC hod been completed on the first day of
the financial year, group revenuss for the year would have increased by £28.2 milion and the
group prafit would have alse increased by £2.1 miilion.
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24.3 Arts Centler Enlerprises - Sugar Land, [LC (continved)

£'000
Property. plant and equipment 869
Cash 5,300
Trade and other receivables 1,455
Trade and other payables (6.978)
Borrowings {981)

{335)
Goedwill 36,947
Total consideration 36,612
Satisfied by
Cash 36,612
Total consideration '"""SZ"ZTE'
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration 36.612
Less: cash and cash equivalent balonces acquired 15,300}
Net Cashflow 31,312
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27 Conlingent liabllities

A corporate cross guarantee of the senior debt exists between the Company and the majority of
its subsidiary undertakings. The senior debt is secured by a debeniure over the majority of the assets
of the Group.

28 Commitments

Capital commitmenis

At the balonce sheel date the Group had no material coniractual commitments for capital
expenditure [2018: £nil).

Operaling lease commitments - lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

30 March 31 March

2019 2018
Minimum lease payments falling due: £'000 £000
wiHhin one year 12,477 6,150
In the second to fifth years inclusive 48,248 19,867
After five years 478,923 60,102
Minimum lease payments 539,648 85,119

The Group leases certain assets throughou! its portfolio under operating lease arangements.
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29 Financial risk management

Capital dsk management

The Group's objeclives when managing capital ore fo moximise shareholder valve whilst
safeguarding the Group's abiflity to conlinue as a going concern. In commeoen with other private
equily portfolic companies, the Group carries a high level of net debt compared to equity. Total
capitaol is calculated as otal equity as shown in the consolidated statement of position, plus net
debi, Net debt is calculated as the total of borowings as shown in the Consolidated Stotement of
Financial Position, less cash and caosh equivalents.

Financlal risk management objeclives

The Group's aclivities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks, including currency risk, interest rate risk,

credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on minimising poteniial adverse effects
an the Group's financial performance,

Descriptions of the financial risks and how these aore managed and mifigated are included in the
Strategic Report on page 13,

Financiai Risks Sensilivity analysis

interes! Rale Risk An increase/decrease of one percentage point in LIBOR would
decrease/increase the Group's loss by £4,406,000 (2018:
£3,388,000).

Foreign Exchange Risk Had the US dollar strengthened against GBF by an additional 1%
during the period, assuming all other variables remained
constant, the Group's loss would have increased by £102,000
(2018: £31.000).

Had the Euro strenglhened againsi GBP by an odditional 1%
during the period, assuming all other variables remained
canstant, the Group's loss would have decreased by £1 1,000
{2018: £27.000).
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29  Financial sk management (continued}
Liquidity

The following iables detqil ihe Group's remaining contractual maturity far ils financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest data on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both inlerest and principat cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the bolance sheet date. The
contractual maturity is bosed on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay. The

Group is not party to any derivalive contracis.

Less than

1year 1-Syears 5+ years Tolal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

30 March 2019
Trade and olher payables 117.972 - - 117,972
Finance lease liability 4,244 17,403 407.578 431,225
variable interest rate instruments - - 377.597  377.5%7
Total cash-settied liabitities 122,214 17,403 787,175 924,774

31 March 2018

Trade and other payabies 78,982 - - 78,982
Notes payable - - 9,943 9.943
Fnance lease licbility 4,202 17,231 414,078 435,51
Varigble interesi rate instruments - - 257,998 257,998
total cash-sefiled liabililies 83,184 17.231 482,01% 782,434

The Company has no relevant cash-settied assels or liabililies ond so has no liquidily risk.
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30 Financial insirumenls

Categories of financial instruments

Financial
Loans and liabilities at
receivables amarlised cost Total
£'000 £000 £'000

30 March 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 98,956 - 98,956
Trade and other receivables 35,237 - 35,237
Financial assets 134,193 - 134,193
Trade and other payables - 124,090 124,070
Bormowings - 451,102 451,102
Obligations under finance leases - 89,491 89,6M
Financial liabilities - 664,883 644,883
Nel financial assets/(liabilitles) 134,193 (544,883) (530,4%0)
31 March 2018
Cash ond cash equivalents 86,749 - 84,747
Trade and other receivables 82,141 - 82,141
Financlal assets 148,890 - 148,890
Financial llabilities
Trade ond other payables - 90,507 90,907
Liakilities held for sale - 2,51 2,571
Bomowings - 334,144 334,144
Cbligations under finance leases - 82,025 87,025
Financial liabililies - 516,647 516,047
Net financial assets/{llabillties) 148,890 {514,447) (347,757}

Fair value measuremenls

The information set out below provides information about how the Group delermines fair values of
various financial assets and linancial liabilities.

Financial insiruments are grouped into Levels | to 3 based on the degree to which ihe fair value is

observabie:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoled prices (unadiusted) in aclive
markeis for identical assets or liabilities:

84



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 30 MARCH 2019

3¢ Financial instruments (conlinued)

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or ligbilily, either direclly {i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

- level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable marke! dota (unobservable
inputs).

Fair value of financial assets and financial kabilities thot are not measvred at {air value
The directors consider that the camying omounis of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the financial statements approxdmate to their air values.

31 Controlling Party

The Company's ullimate parent company is IE Luxco S.arl {Luxembourg), which is contiolled by
Providence Equity Partners VII A LP (Caymaon Islands} and Providence VI Global Holdings LP

{Cayman Islands). The Directors consider these parties o be the conlralling parly.
32 Related parly lransactions

Group
Transactions with directors and key monagement personnel

Remuneralion paid to the directors or other, who are considered o be key management
personnel, is disclosed in note 4.

frading transactions

During the period, the Group provided production-related services to associates and joint veniures
of £248000 (2018 &£775000). At the end of the period. balances of £1,238.000
{2018: £7.056,000} were owed {0 the Group by the associates and joint ventures. These balances
ore unsecured and will be seitled perodically over the course of the production. There are cumrenlly

no provisions relaiing to these balances. These transactions have been conducted at arm’s length,
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33 Subsidiary entifies, associales and joint ventures and invesimenis
Subsidiaries

100% of the ordinary share capital of all subsidicaries is owned directly or indirectly uniess otherwise
indicated. Where indicated, shareholdings are effective ownership percentaoges as held by the
parent (i.e. if a subsidiary holding company is $0% owned, and owns 100% of all its subsidiaries, all

subsidiaries are shown as being 0% owned].
incorporated in United Kingdorn

All subsidiaries have taken the s47%a exemption from audif unless exempt from audit in ony case.

Company % Shares

Subsidiary underioking Principal aclivity

No. held
Direct investments
Internationat Entertainment Midco Limited' 08769703 Helding company
Indirect investments
AKA Group Limited? 05492853 Holding company
AKA NYC Limited? 03749576 Markeling services
AKA Promotions timited? 03380489 Markeling services
ATG Entertainment Limited?® 09447208 Holding company
ATG London Limited® 03902727 ?i::ii’t'iﬁgc’gz;‘;;‘z;“d
ATG Management Limited? 04215171 Dormant
ATG Productions Limited® 09327475 Proguction company
ATG WOTV Limited? 09305422 Production company
Aviesbury Waterside Theatre Limited® 03944591 Thegtre operator
Churchill Theatre Bromiey Limited? 03944535 Theatre operator
CP Studio Limiled? 0827873% Marketing services
Digital Media Services UK Limited? 04548761 Digital media services
Encore International Merchandise Limited? 04935104 Merchandiser
First Family Enferiginment LLP? QCI05%46 Production company
G.S Lashmar Limited® 00418300 90%  Dormant
Glasgow Theatres Limited® 04423391 Theatre operator
Highland Fling Japan Limited?® 05302902 Dormant
International Entertainment Finonce Limited 08770108 Holding company
international Enterfainment Invesiments 08769925 Holding company

Limited'
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Subslidiary undertaking

Londeon Theatre Club Limited?
London Turnstyle Limited®

Milton Keynes Theatre Limited®
New Wimbledon Theaire Limited?®
Playhouse Theaire Limited®
Richmond Theatre Limited?

Savoy Theatre Group Limited®
Savoy Theatre Holdings Limited?
Savoy Theatre Limited®
Screenstage Limited®

Screenstage Productions Limited®
Smart Plays Limited?

Sonia Friedman Productions Limited®
SFP Dreams Limited®

$FP Shows Limiled?®

SFP Sunny Limited?

Stoke-on-Tren! Theatres Limited?

The Ambassador Enterfainment Group
Limited®

The Ambassador Theatre Group Limited®

The Ambassador Theatre Group (Venues)
Limited?

The Ambassador Theatre Group Qverseas
Holdings Limited®

Theatre Management Limited®

Theatre Monagement Holdings Limited®
The Duke of York's Theatre Limited?®

The Tickel Machine Group Limited?
Theatre Royal Brighton Limited®

Woking Turnstyle Limited®

Company
No.

04069735
02680873
03490333
04787118
04510126
03716049
05527723
03649280
00053830
04146281
048%7979
04275951
04302464
10194082
09330152
09214684
03507468

07044007

02671052

01444368

08458674

03120328
06182351
00592528
02638971
03735154
02699637
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% Shares

held

Principal activity

Dormant

Dormant

Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Holding company
Dormant

Theatre operator
Dormant

Dormont

Dormont

Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Theatre operator

Holding company

Holding and
production company

Theotre operator

Holding company

Theatre operator
Holding company
Theatre operator
Hicketing agency
Theatre operator
Theatre operctor
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Incorporated in USA

Subsidiary undertaking

ACE Theotrical Group, LLC#

Arts Center Enterprises, LLC®

Arts Center Enterprises — Brooklyn, LLCS

Arts Center Enterprises - New Orleans, LLC8
Aris Center Enterprises - Sugar Land, LLC2
Ambassador Theahtie Group ~ NY, LLCé

ATG Tickels US, LLCé

Creative Partnership LA, Inc!?

Encore Merchandising, Inc!

Hudson Theatre, LLCS

Kings Thealre Developer, LLC?2

Kings Theatre Manager, LLC?

Lyric Thealre, LLC¢

Majestic Presents LLCE

Saenger Aggregotor Leverage Lender, LLC®
Saenger Theatre Developer, Inc’

Saenger Theatre Manager, LLC?

Saenger Thealre Master Tenan! LLC
Saenger Thealre Partnership, Lid?

SFP-NY, LLCé

saenger Theatre Redevelopmeni Company
LLCe

Sundance Productions, Inc?

The ambassador Theatre Group US Holdings,

Ince

a8

% Shares held

Principal activity
Management services
Theaire operator
Theatre operator
Theaire operator
Venue operator
Production company
Ticketing agency
Marketing services
Dormant

Thegqire operator
Venue developer
Managing member
Theatre operalor
Theatre operalor
Financing company
Venue developer
Managing member
Thealre operator
Dormant

Production company

Venue developer

Production company

Holding company
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incorporated in Germany

The following subsidiaries have elected ta apply the exemption available under §244, section 3 of
the German Commercial Code and have not prepared and published financial statements under
German GAAP because they are included as fully consolidated subsidiaries in the ATG Group

financial statements.

Subskdiary undertaking 7 Shares held
BB Entertainment Holding GmbH!?

BB Group GmbH*®

B8 Promotion GmbH"©

Bodyguard Verwaliungs GmbH!12
Bodyguard Musical GmbH 8 Co KG':
ESMS GmbH'"®

Subsidiary undertaking . Shares held
Fandango Musical GrmbH!®

On Stage Productionst?

Mehr-86 Enteriainment GmbH!?

Deutsche Eintritiskarten TKS GmbH'™

Dirty Dancing Tournee Produktions GmbH &
Co. KG"

Mehr-88 Theater GmbH?®

MMS MMehr! Marketing & Sales GmibH*
Musical-Dome Verwaltungs- und
Betriebsgesellscaft mbH?

Stadighl Express GmbH?2

HP-Theater Produktionsgesellschaft mbH!?
Apornethos Gastspiel Verwaltungs GmbH i.L.22
Schatten Gasispiel Verwallungs GmbH L. 7
Dirty Dancing Gastspiel verwallungs GmbH'?

g9

Principal activity
Holding company

Holding/Management

services company
Praomotions company
Holding company
Production company
Marketing services
Principal aclivity
Production company
Production company
Holding company
Tickeling company

Praduction company

Theater operator
Markeling services

Theoter operator

Production company
Production company
Dormant
Dormant

Holding company
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incorporated in Ausiralia

Subsidiary underaking

AKA Promotions {Australia) Pty Lid!s

% Shaores held

Encore Merchandise [Australia) Ply Limited's

The Ambassodor Theatre Group Asia Pacific

Pty Limited's

Associates and Joint Ventures

Name

HP Wes! End Limited?

JB UK Tour |l Productions Ld?
Intershow Merchandise GmbH:?
ISM Show AG

Other invesiments

Name

Deutsche Einlttskarten TKS GmbH

Cieven Investments Lid

Kings Theatre Redevelopment
Company LLC

Merlin Entertainments plc

Incorporated

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Germany

Switzerand

Incorporated

Germany

United Kingdom

Usa

Uniled Kingdom

90

% Shares
held

25%
0%
100%
50%

% Shares
held

0.02%
0%

1 08%

0.00%

Principal activity
Marketing services
Dormant

Production company

Principal activity

Production company
Production company
Production company

Production company

Principal activity

Ticketing agency
Produciion
company

Venue developer

Entertainment group
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1These companies have g registered office of 28 51, George Street, London W18 2FA

?These companies have a registered office of 115 Shaftesbury Avenue, Cambridge Circus,
London WC2H BAF

Ithese companies hove a registered office of 2@ Floor Alexander House, Church Path, Woking,
Surrey GU21 6EJ

+This company has a registered office of 5™ Floor, 8% New Bond Stregel, London W1S 1DA

5This company has o registered office of 45 Monmouth Street, David lan Productions, London
WC2ZH ?DG

¢These companies have a registered office of Capitol Services, Inc., 1675 South State §i., Ste B,
Dover, DE 19901

’These companies have a registered office of Capitol Corporale Services, Inc., 8550 United Plaza
Bidg. Il Ste 305, Baton Rouge, LA 70809

8These compaonies have q regisiered office of Capitol Corporate Services, Inc., 206 E. 9th 51, Ste
1300, Austin, TX 78701

% This company has a registered office of Fitelson, Lasky, Aslan, Couture, & Garmise, Richard
Garmise, 551 5th Ave #605, New York, NY 10176

10 These companies have a registered office of RéntgenstraBe 7, 68167 Mannheim

" This company has a registered cffice of Charlotenstr, 68, 10117 Berin

12These campanies have a regisiered office of LandsbergstroBe 28, 50678 Kdin

3These companies hove aregistered colfice of 6624 San Fernando Road, Los Angeles, CA 71210-
1796

14 These companies have a ragistered office of 630, ?ih Avenue, Suite 305 New York, New York
10036

'SThese companies have a regislered office of Suite .1, Level 6, 3 Bowen Crescent, Melbourne,
Victoria 3004, Australia

¥ This company has a registered office of Suite 3, Level 1, 4 - 10 Bay Sireet, Double Bay, NSW 2028
7 This company hos aregistered office of CarmenstraBe 12, 8032 Zurich

'8 This company has aregistered office of Komoedienstr. 11, 50647 Kdin

¥ This company has a regisiered office of Erkrather Str. 30, 40233 Dasseldorf

#This company has aregistered office of BanksstraBe 28, 20097 Hamburg

21 This company has a registered office of Goldgasse 1, 504648 Kain

27This company has a registered office of Stadionring 24, 44791 Bochum

2 This company has a registered office of 1800 Post Oak Blivd. é Boulevard Place, Suile 450,
Houston, Texas 77054
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